
15.0220.03000 

Amendment to : SB 2032 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/26/2015 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appro riations antici ated under current la w. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Expenditures $0 $0 $300,000 $0 $300 ,000 

Appropriations $0 $0 $300,000 $0 $300 ,000 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

Counties $0 $0 

Cities $0 $0 

School Districts $0 $0 

Townships $0 $0 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

As amended , establishes the Western Infrastructure Strategy Office to develop/maintain comprehensive strategic 
plan on current & future infrastructure needs of political subdivisions affected by oil & gas development. $300 ,000 is 
appropriated from the general fund for this purpose. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 establishes the office , outlines the duties of the office and responsibilities of the director, and contains 
reporting requirements . To fulfill these responsibilities, it is estimated to cost $300,000 for staffing and associated 
expenses. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each re venue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

It is estimated that the costs for this new office would be approximately $300 ,000 a biennium. This cost would cover 
the staffing and expenses for the staff to travel for meetings or host meetings with political subdivisions. In addition 
there will be costs for distributing the plan either electronically or by hard copy. 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation. 

Section 2 includes an appropriation of $300,000 from the general fund which would be used for retaining a 
consultant/staff to develop and maintain the plan and for expenses that would be necessary to have meetings and 
facilitate discussions between political subdivisions. In addition there will be costs for distributing the plan either 
electronically or by hard copy. This funding was not included in the executive budget. 

Name: Justin Dever 

Agency: Department of Commerce 

Telephone: 701-328-7258 

Date Prepared: 01/27/2015 



15.0220.02000 

Bill/Resolution No.: SB 2032 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

12/20/2014 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
1 1 d · r r · td d ti eves an appropna t0ns an 1c1pa e un ercurren aw. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $300,000 $0 $330,000 

Appropriations $0 $0 $0 $300,000 $0 $330,000 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

Counties $0 $0 

Cities $0 $0 

School Districts $0 $0 

Townships $0 $0 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters) . 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

Establishes Oil & Gas Development Strategic Planning Authority (OGDSPA) overseen by Industrial Commission to 
develop/maintain comprehensive strategic plan on current & future infrastructure needs of political subdivisions 
affected by oil & gas development. Funding from OGDSPAAdministrative Fund. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

17-10-04 establishes the Oil and Gas Development Strategic Planning Authority Administrative Fund which will have 
a continuing appropriation . One source of funding for this new Administrative Fund will be the Oil and Gas Research 
Fund. The funding for the staffing of this new Authority will come from the Oil and Gas Research Fund . 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

Revenues for the newly created Oil and Gas Development Strategic Planning Authority will come from other funds 
including but not limited to the Oil and Gas Research Fund. Since the revenues come from another special fund the 
net result is zero for revenues. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

It is estimated that the costs for th is new authority would be approximately $300,000 a biennium. This amount is 
based on the costs that are currently being expended by the Industrial Commission through the Oil and Gas 
Research Fund for contracted labor under another authority overseen by the Commission . This cost would cover the 
staffing and expenses for the staff to travel for meetings or host meetings with political subdivisions . In addition there 
will be costs for distributing the plan either electronically or by hard copy. 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation. 

The Oil and Gas Development Strategic Planning Authority Administrative Fund is being established as a continuing 
appropriation. It is anticipated that the costs for the first biennium will be $300,000 and the monies would come from 
the Oil and Gas Research Fund. These costs would be for retaining a consultanUstaff to develop and maintain the 
plan and for expenses that would be necessary to have meetings and facilitate discussions between political 
subdivisions. In addition there will be costs for distributing the plan either electronically or by hard copy. 

Name: Karlene Fine 

Agency: Industrial Commission 

Telephone: 701 -328-3722 

Date Prepared: 0 1 /05/201 5  

• 
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2015 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Energy and Natural Resources 
Fort Lincoln Room, State Capitol 

SB 2032 
1/8/2015 

21768 

D Subcommittee 

0 Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to the oil and gas development strategic planning authority; and to provide a 

continuing 

Minutes: 2 Attachments 

Chairman Schaible called the committee to order, all members were present. 

Tim Dawson was present to present the bill. Mr. Dawson explained the bill in its current 
state. 

Senator Latten: The planning is restricted to infrastructure? 

Tim Dawson: The focus is on infrastructure needs, you can see that in section 2, but it does 
encompass more than that. There are many studies during the interim by either 
government entities or the legislature and someone needs to look at those and make sure 
there isn't overlap between studies. 

Al Anderson: See attachment #1. 

Chairman Schaible: Can you tell me what we are doing now and why this would be better? 

Al Anderson: Over the last few years Vision West was an effort that used $2,000,000 of 
state dollars to help communities in their strategic planning. What it didn't do is that is it 
didn't go farther out to more of the regional impacts and try to pull the different decision 
makers together. 

Chairman Schaible: Would you see this as hindering local entities from making their own 
decisions? 

Al Anderson: The intent was to give resources to those committees to make better 
decisions. I also had request for additional funding for oil and gas producing counties to 
expand the Vision West efforts that were not include in the commerce bill. 



Senate Energy and Natural Resources 
SB 2032 
01/08/2015 
Page 2 

Ron Ness: North Dakota Petroleum Council and was the Chairman of the subcommittee on 
infrastructure for the Empower Commission. One of the things that we saw as we put 
together the value added study for ethanol and natural gas brought it to the legislature but 
nothing came of it. This study doesn't replace any of the other studiers. This is intent on 
having someone continually think about things. We view the Bakken as a project and the 
money that you put into infrastructure and getting it right one of the things that I hear is that 
there is no body that is managing the process throughout the whole region. 

Senator Triplett: Can you address how you would see this person working with other 
departments? 

Ron Ness: I think that this person would engage where they are asked to engage and 
where there is value. It may apply back to housing, healthcare that they maybe only looking 
at one aspect of. We had a lot of discussions on where you think it can go. 

Senator Triplett: How do you see this person to the regional councils? 

Ron Ness: I think that this person is willing to engage where directed. That will be 
determined 

Senator Triplett: How do you value this position as to the research? 

Ron Ness: One of the suggestions is the discussion of additional funds into the oil and gas 
funds. This would take funding away from the oil and gas council. We are not a startup 
entity. 

Sandy Tabor: With Kadermas, Lee and Jackson. As you recall one of the first oil and gas 
studies that was done. I think that during a conversation it came to light that there were 
numerous, between 13 and 17 studies being done during the interim. How could we avoid 
duplication of efforts? What we did is talk about the different studies and how they were 
different. Part of it is that you need to know what they are talking about. The other example 
is that right after the contracts were awarded they are asked if we can collaborate. It saves 
the tax payers money in the long run. It is not to control studies it is to try and get everyone 
to know what others are doing. That is in a nutshell why we thought that everyone needed 
help. 

Senator Triplett: Why would it not be in the governor's office? 

Sandy Tabor: the Authority is a known entity. Ultimately that info get to the governor and 
we are familiar with how both work and we thought the model of the authority. 
Senator Hogue: : I wonder if you can help e understand I am wondering if your committee 
explored expanding the scope or weather creation of this authority could be rolled into this 
one. 
Sandy: 

Al Anderson: Part of it I think it was more of a different skill set. 
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Senator Hogue: Would they make recommendation to the state land board if the legislature 
continues to land money 

Al Anderson: That individual would be directed by the industrial commission. I t  could be is 
the best way I can say that. 

Senator Triplett: 31 :00 it is about a policy structure without regard to 

Al Anderson: I t  was the other side is that I do try to help from the commerce position. It is 
not my best skillset nor do I have time. You would want planning skillset and that may or 
may not be the. 

Scott D. Zainhofsky: See attachment #2. 

Senator Triplett: How many people are in your planning process? 

Scott D. Zainhofsky: We have a large number of folks that we engage. We have 3 full time 
employees that work on planning but we believe it is a collaborative process to we engage 
as many public and private entities as we can. 

There was no further testimony in support or opposition. Chairman Schaible closed the 
hearing on SB 2032. 
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2015 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Energy and Natural Resources 
Fort Lincoln Room, State Capitol 

SB 2032 
1/9/2015 

22013 

D Subcommittee 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to the oil and gas development strategic planning authority; and to provide a 

continuing appropriation. 

Minutes: 

Senator Triplett: I did serve on the Energy Development and Transmission Committee 
during the interim and I was surprised to learn that bills that come through the Empower 
Commission do not get a full hearing in the Energy Development and Transmission 
Committee and that concerned me. 

Chairman Schaible: I think that this needs some discussion. I think that the idea is 
important to carry forward in some fashion. 

Senator Murphy: Did the committee notice that the oil producing counties objected to this 
bill. 

Chairman Schaible: I know it was in the paper but I don't believe I heard anything besides 
that. 

Vice Chair Unruh: I would like for Karlene Fine to come down and talk to us about this. 

Senator Armstrong: The counties out there do a good job of communicating with each other 
but with given the fiscal note of this bill and the massive scope of the projects that are being 
undertaken, if this person figures out one way to combine something between Mountrail 
and Dunn County that fixes one county road issue it would pay for itself. I think that part of 
it is that everybody is running at 120% 7 days a week. The problem is you need local buy 
in. 

Senator Triplett: I agree with the principal but with transportation they have 3 full time 
planners on staffs who have been working in the Department of Transportation. I don't think 
that supplementing existing state agencies is the intent of the bill . .  I f  there is a problem 
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with how they are managing their government section then that is an issue for the governor 
and his head of transportation to deal with. 

Chairman Schaible: I would piggyback on that, it can be confrontation or compliment 
depending on the intent or who is there. We are focusing on roads and this goes beyond 
that. It is all about intent and is not there to interfere with plans, if somebody wants to do 
something there is a better way. 

Senator Hogue: I thought that we might want to call Lance Gabe down. We have been 
giving these large appropriations from the state land board. How do they go about funding 
the state land board? Are they funding on a piece meal basis? 

Chairman Schaible: Anyone else you think we should bring? 

Senator Triplett: Allen Anderson from the Commerce Department said that he does a little 
bit of this and since he is the chair from the Empower. 



2015 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Energy and Natural Resources 
Fort Lincoln Room, State Capitol 

SB 2032 
1 /15/2015 

22037 

D Subcommittee 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to the oil and gas development strategic planning authority; and to provide a 

continuing appropriation. 

Minutes: 

Alan Anderson: Commerce Commissioner, Department of Commerce. 

Vice Chair Unruh: Is  there another authority user the Public Service Commission besides 
the pipeline authority? 

Alan Anderson: Besides the pipeline authority there is also the transmission authority as 
well. 

Senator Armstrong: Has there been discussion on amendments? 

Alan Anderson: Yes. One of the proposals that was kicked out was if there were support to 
Empower if instead of having an actual authority set up with the industrial commission if 
they would consider some contact structure to offer aid, be it this biennium only or ongoing. 

Senator Armstrong: Any answers given by Empower 

Alan Anderson: Empower couldn't take a full position as there was not a quorum. Next 
Wednesday we will meet and hope to have a quorum them. 

Senator Armstrong: Who is knowledgeable on this? 

Alan Anderson: Ron Ness, Sandy Tibor, Karlene Fine 

Senator Murphy: Would it be fair to say that they were learning towards coordination? 

Alan Anderson: Yes that is correct. 



Senate Energy and Natural Resources 
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Senator Hogue: CHS proposed plant in Stutsman County and a lot of issues came up 
about the coordination about the very issues this authority was talking about. Why is there 
a logical reason to limit this to the oil and gas producing counties? 

Alan Anderson: I would have to verify the language as it was not intentionally set for oil and 
gas counties. The intent was more for infrastructure needs in critical areas. From my 
standpoint if the $3,000,000,000 CHS plant goes forward it will put a lot of stress on 
Stutsman County. Challenges arise when it comes to housing. Empower would be open to 
infrastructure needs and I will bring that up at our next meeting. 

Lance Gabe: Director of Energy Impact Office. 

Chairman Schaible: Are we in the right direction? 

Lance Gabe: The Energy Impact Office is a branch of the Land Board. Clearly any place 
that has a plan has been easier for us to deal with their needs. In 2011 HUD provided a 
grant cost share of $300,000 for infrastructure planning efforts called Vision West. We take 
applications from a variety of subdivisions and it would be hard to see how they would 
react. 

Senator Triplett: This concept would be better set inside commerce or is it not your place to 
say? 

Lance Gabe: There are so many components but largely its infrastructure related to 
housing and water. 

There was no further discussion and Chairman Schaible closed the hearing. 



2015 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 
Energy and Natu ral Resources 
Fort Lincoln Room, State Capitol 

SB 2032 
1/22/2015 

22377 

D Subcommittee 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature t<� ) {)l ,1, i'ifA 
Explanation o r  reason for introduction of bi l l /resolution: 

Relating to the oil and gas development strategic planning authority; and to provide a 

continuing appropriation. 

Minutes: 1 Attachment 

Senator Armstrong: (See attachment #1) The process is that we got in touch with some 
Empower people, the governor's office and sat down and coordinated what the goals for 
this were, what their thoughts on this were and all of the stakeholders involved came to a 
resolution which lead to this amendment and I think it turns a pretty good idea into a pretty 
good bill. 

Senator Armstrong then went on to explain the amendment that had been created. 

There was no further discussion on SB 2032, Chairman Schaible closed the discussion. 



2015 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Energy and Natural Resources 
Fort Lincoln Room, State Capitol 

SB 2032 
1/22/2015 

22406 

D Subcommittee 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature �Q> Ql 1 hJf )\. 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to the oil and gas development strategic planning authority; and to provide a 

continuing appropriation. 

Minutes: 

Chairman Schaible: Discussion? 

Vice Chair Unruh made a motion to amend the bill with amendments that were brought by 
Senator Armstrong with a second by Senator Armstrong. 

Chairman Schaible: After talking to the parities that were involved they seemed to be alright 
with the three corrections that this amendment makes. 

Roll was taken, the motion passed with a vote of 6-0-1. Having adopted the amendment 
Senator Armstrong made a motion for a Do Pass as Amended with a second by Senator 
Triplett. 

Senator Armstrong: The dollar amount involved is such that if they solve one problem then 
they have recouped their cost. 

Senator Triplett: If we are, as a committee, are going to think more deeply on this one thing 
that we might consider that there is some de facto planning going on already in the 
process, even though we have not delegated the planning function regarding that money by 
being a centralized place for all of the grant funds to come in and are analyzed. It appears 
that there is some level of overview if we take the position that we do not want to grow 
government that would be an argument in favor of letting this go. 

Senator Hogue: One example that we heard during the interim is Beulah and Hazen both 
have separate airports and the absence of comprehensive regional planning. What I have 
heard from some people is that having the planning doesn't mean the communities won't 
agree to have their own facilities and this doesn't give anybody authority to control where 
growth occurs within a region. 
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Vice Chair Unruh: I think that in the case of the airports specifically if there were a more 
neutral party trying to organize some type of facility between both of the communities early 
on and if there had been more proactive approach to that maybe we could have seen 
development happen a little differently in our communities. 

Chairman Schaible: I like the very high altitude look at the process but if we are going to 
give out hundreds of millions of dollars we need to have a little more oversight in that. The 
other thing is that I agree we don't need to expand government but if we are we need to be 
responsible with it. 

Senator Triplett: I think that this should be last biennium that we think about this money 
flowing to western North Dakota as being a special case and that we really need, for the 
benefit of the whole state, to get back to a more, normalized budgeting practice. 

There was no further discussion, roll was taken and the motion for a passed with a 6-0-1 
count, Chairman Schaible carrying the bill to the floor and the bill was re referred to the 
Appropriations Committee. 



15.0220.02001 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff fo~ 
Title.03000 Senator Armstrong \6 
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~ ~ 
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2032 .~ 

Page 1, line 2, replace "oil and gas development strategic planning authority" with "western 
infrastructure strategy office" 

Page 1 , line 2, replace "a continuing" with "an" 

Page 1, line 7, replace "Oil and gas development strategic planning authority" with 
"Western infrastructure strategy office" 

Page 1, line 8, replace "oil and gas development strategic planning authority" with "western 
infrastructure strategy office" 

Page 1, line 8, remove "industrial" 

Page 1, line 9, replace "commission. The industrial commission" with "department of 
commerce. The department of commerce" 

Page 1, line 9, remove "hire" 

Page 1, line 10, remove "employees or" 

Page 1, line 12, replace "Oil and gas development strategic planning" with "Duties of the 
western infrastructure strategy office" 

Page 1, line 13, replace "authority" with "director" 

Page 1, line 20, replace "industrial commission" with "department of commerce, as well as the 
North Dakota association of oil and gas producing counties" 

Page 2, line 3, replace "industrial commission" with "department of commerce" 

Page 2, line 5, replace "industrial commission" with "department of commerce" 

Page 2, line 8, after "information" insert "and, as requested , coordinate and direct state-funded 
studies relating to western infrastructure and impacts" 

Page 2, remove lines 1 O through 26 

Page 2, line 27, replace "17-10-05" with "17-10-04" 

Page 2, line 28, replace "authority" with "director" 

Page 2, line 28, replace "its" with "the western infrastructure strategy office's" 

Page 2, line 29, replace "authority" with "western infrastructure strategy office" 

Page 2, line 29, replace "authority" with "director" 

Page 2, line 30, replace "industrial commission" with "department of commerce" 

Page 2, line 31 , after the underscored period insert "The director shall provide annual updates 
to the budget section of the legislative management, the North Dakota association of 
oil and gas producing counties, and the legislative management. 

SECTION 2. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the 
general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $300,000, or 

Page No. 1 15.0220.02001 



so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of commerce for the 
purpose of establishing the western infrastructure strategy office, for the biennium 
beginning July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2017." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 2 15.0220.02001 



2015 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 2032 

Senate Energy and Natural Resources 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 15.0220.02001 

Action Taken Move Amendments 

Date: 1 /22/2015 
Roll Call Vote #: 1 

Committee 

Motion Made By Vice Chair Unruh Seconded By Senator Armstrong 

Senators Yes No Senators Yes No 

Chairman Schaible x c---~...,r ,.,,, ·--L.. 
~~· - ,. - ,.., 1 

Vice Chair Unruh x Senator Triplett x 
Senator Armstrong x 
Senator Hogue x 
Senator Laffen x 

Total 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
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Committee 
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Chairman Schaible x c ........ ~~ ..... ~ r..i1 ·--1.. --· - ,. ,~ ..... 
Vice Chair Unruh x Senator Triplett x 
Senator ArmstronQ x 
Senator HoQue x 
Senator Laffen x 

Total 

Floor Assignment Chairman Schaible 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
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Com Standing Committee Report 
January 23, 2015 7:56am 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_ 14_001 
Carrier: Schaible 

Insert LC: 15.0220.02001 Title: 03000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2032: Energy and Natural Resources Committee (Sen. Schaible, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (6 YEAS, 
0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2032 was placed on the Sixth order on 
the calendar. 

Page 1, line 2, replace "oil and gas development strategic planning authority" with "western 
infrastructure strategy office" 

Page 1, line 2, replace "a continuing" with "an" 

Page 1, line 7, replace "Oil and gas development strategic planning authority" with 
"Western infrastructure strategy office" 

Page 1, line 8, replace "oil and gas development strategic planning authority" with "western 
infrastructure strategy office" 

Page 1, line 8, remove "industrial" 

Page 1, line 9, replace "commission. The industrial commission" with "department of 
commerce. The department of commerce" 

Page 1, line 9, remove "hire" 

Page 1, line 10, remove "employees or" 

Page 1, line 12, replace "Oil and gas development strategic planning" with "Duties of the 
western infrastructure strategy office" 

Page 1, line 13, replace "authority" with "director" 

Page 1, line 20, replace "industrial commission" with "department of commerce, as well as 
the North Dakota association of oil and gas producing counties" 

Page 2, line 3, replace "industrial commission" with "department of commerce" 

Page 2, line 5, replace "industrial commission" with "department of commerce" 

Page 2, line 8, after "information" insert "and, as requested, coordinate and direct 
state-funded studies relating to western infrastructure and impacts" 

Page 2, remove lines 10 through 26 

Page 2, line 27, replace "17-10-05" with "17-10-04" 

Page 2, line 28, replace "authority" with "director" 

Page 2, line 28, replace "its" with "the western infrastructure strategy office's" 

Page 2, line 29, replace "authority" with "western infrastructure strategy office" 

Page 2, line 29, replace "authority" with "director" 

Page 2, line 30, replace "industrial commission" with "department of commerce" 

Page 2, line 31, after the underscored period insert "The director shall provide annual 
updates to the budget section of the legislative management, the North Dakota 
association of oil and gas producing counties, and the legislative management. 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_ 14_001 
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Module ID: s_stcomrep_ 14_001 
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Insert LC: 15.0220.02001 Title: 03000 

SECTION 2. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in 
the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of 
$300,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of 
commerce for the purpose of establishing the western infrastructure strategy office, 
for the biennium beginning July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2017." 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 2 s_stcomrep_ 14_001 
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2015 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

SB 2032 
2/3/2015 

Job# 23045 

D Subcommittee 
D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature £.ko ,§ 4§ la, 12Jev W¢ 
Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL relating to the western infrastructure strategy office. 

Minutes: T estimon #1 -2 

Chairman Holmberg called the committee to order on SB 2032. Roll Call was taken . All 
committee members were present. Becky Deichert, OMB, and Chris Kadrmas, Legislative 
Council were also present. 

Tim Dawson, Legislative Management, neutral , I staff this committee, this bill came 
through EmPower ND, it has been changed . It establishes a western infrastructure strategy 
office, in the ND department of commerce, to maintain and develop a current 
comprehensive strategic plan to identify the current and future regional infrastructure 
needs. This director will collect and analyze information, create a strategic plan to prioritize 
current and future impacts, and, as directed by the dept. of commerce shall analyze any 
changes or additions to funding programs and incentives and make recommendations as to 
future areas of study. The funding was changed to a general fund appropriation. 

Senator Bekkedahl , in support of this bill from the perspective that we have departments 
in the state that assist the oil and gas counties in this development area and bring to the 
table a little less politics, more discussion and a true analysis of the impacts. Any tool we 
can give agencies to assist in development would be helpful as well to some of the smaller 
subdivisions that don 't have access to planning staffs. (4: 16-5: 12) 

Alan Anderson , Commissioner, ND Department of Commerce, Chairman , Empower ND 
Commission , in favor of SB 2032, written Testimony Attached# 1 This bill was 
recommended by the Commission, it is one of 6 bills EmPower has put together, all 
members supported them unanimously. The office would be funded from the oil and gas 
research council. The $300K is not included in the executive budget. This will help 
coordinate the different efforts in regional infrastructure. It would act almost like the pipeline 
authority does, it is envisioned as a part time person , just to provide periodic updates to the 
legislature on what is going on . Would work with the energy impact coordinator to 
understand and pull together the local issues. It would not make decisions only 
recommendations. (9.21) 
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Senator Mathern: Vision West, is already doing this? 

Alan Anderson: Vision West, has done a great job; they are far from being complete in 
regional studies. During the buildup of the commerce budget, they asked for money, it did 
not carry. This is not meant to overlap just to support. 

Chairman Bowman and Senator Sorvaag asked what would be the objective; information 
today is accessible much faster than years ago. Most of the information you are talking 
about we have in our meetings. Where would this assist and benefit the counties? 

Alan Anderson the intent is to play in areas where data may not be readily accessible, 
and making sure everyone is aware where the information is , so to minimize overlap and 
improve coordination. This would be a single point of contact people can go do. Realize the 
$300,000 is maybe a half time person for the 2 years, and a couple of studies. It is not 
going to make a huge difference. 

Senator Carlisle if you are trying to do coordination, why not work with the House on 
2103? 

Alan Anderson: I am not that familiar with 2103. They wouldn't play with what is already 
on. There is a lot of self-interest from the community stand point. You can get all points of 
view from this person . 

Senator Gary Lee: the governor had appointed someone to that sort of positon. Is that 
role still active and if it doesn't it fill this void? 

Alan Anderson That position is still in existence: energy impact coordinator - Rory Nelson, 
he spends most of his time listening to county commissions, city commissions 
understanding what is going on. This would be an expansion of that coordination role , 
would be more involvement at the regional level. 

Ron Ness, ND Petroleum Council , former Chairman, Infrastructure Committee EmPower 
Commission We spent a lot of time looking at this issue. There are expensive studies 
before interim committees. Who is looking at those studies to help determine if the monies 
are being spent in ways that effectively get the job done? We are talking about a conduit to 
ensure money is not spent duplicating what others have already done, to weave through all 
the different jurisdictions for the best utilization of resources. The ND pipeline authority has 
been everybody's knowledge center. What is the smart way to do this? When you look at 
spending money, here, there , we think we need somebody always there to help advise and 
consult with . See it as a resource ; legislators have done a good job prioritizing what 
communities want. Now there is that next level of not always collectively prioritizing things. 
You need a high level expert that can work with communities, assimilate information, 
process it and share it, thinking from the industry standpoint, seeing the big picture. We 
support this bill ; it could be attached to the bill passed last week. (17:59-23.20) • 
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Senator Heckaman and Senator Sorvaag think this is a lot of job for one person , why 
don't put it into a committee. Why couldn't EMPower do some of this? Senator 
Heckaman said that on line 13 first page, the word "opinions" scares her. 

Ron Ness: We see EmPower's job as to come up with big ideas and present them for your 
consideration at the legislature. This person cannot have other vested interests that may 
deviate their thoughts . Sometimes, you need be the good cop, others the bad cop and that 
is not EmPower's role. I can replace it "opinions". I see this person as a coordinator, who 
would be the eyes and ears that would get the pulse of the community. You've got groups 
like Vision West, Upper Great Plains Transportation Institute, NDSU doing the workforce 
studies, etc .. . Groups this person should be able to engage with and gather information 
from . Think of the money we save making one or two right decisions vs one or two 
duplicate ones. The return on investment is pretty immediate. 

Sandy Tabor, KLJ , member of EmPower ND Commission gave example of how they 
envision this. Cited overlap of studies in the 2012 and 2013 interim, there was confusion 
about who was doing what, taxpayer money was being used. They got groups to start 
talking with each other. That is part of what we see, hope and envision for this position. 
(29:05-31 :18) 

Brent Bolger, ND Association of Oil and Gas Producing Counties, in opposition of this bill 
the association feels we can do, and have done, some of this work, this is duplicative. The 
association isn 't opposed to working with EmPower, we already work with Vision West, a 
consortium of 17 counties and communities , and we collaborate with . A number of Oil and 
Association board members also serve on Vision West. The association has provided some 
grant money for Vision West to continue their work. 

Senator Gary Lee. They must think there is a void in pulling things together and looking 
at things as a whole. Why? 

Brent Bolger I believe that, before I stepped into a role with the association of counties, 
every commission had worked independently. This past spring the association felt they 
needed to take a more proactive approach to information gathering. I have my own 
consulting firm I am not an employee of the association. They asked my firm to gather all 
of the infrastructure needs and do some analysis of that a study. The Association asked if I 
would be willing to step in during the legislative session to provide the communications and 
work with the association. 

Senator Gary Lee you see your role as being around the whole development area in the 
western oil counties and to keep your ears on the ground. What would you do with what 
you see in terms of resolution or bringing collaborative groups together to solve issues and 
make a plan? 

Brent Bolger my role has been, and will continue to be to gather information is the eyes 
and ears out in western ND for those communities. As we gather information, we would 
present it to the various stake holders, (legislators, communities, state agencies, etc ... ) 
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Senator Carlisle; right now you are in opposition ; you know it takes, a lot of give and take, 
compromise. What areas you see you could work in with the bill sponsors to make it so that 
everybody would be somewhat happy? (37.58) 

Brent Bolger there are a number of areas, one would be to makes sure that Vision West 
could have a say on how that position would be filled . We feel now there might be some 
overlap. 

Steve Salwei , Transportation Programs Director for DOT, neutral , testified to provide 
information on SB 2032, to ensure there is no duplication of efforts (provided Testimony 
Attached # 2) which includes documents describing some of the transportation effort s DOT 
has underway or has recently completed 

Chairman Bowman: this person's responsibility, would be looking at all needs (medical , 
quality of life issues, infrastructure needs) , you can't have that many new people in the 
community without it affecting the community. We always leave the little towns out of the 
studies; smaller towns can have that much effect. If this person could coordinate , have the 
big picture and help the little cities too, then I would support this bill. 

Chairman Holmberg no additional testimony, hearing closed on SB 2032. We'll let you 
think about this bill. I don't see a reason subcommittee. 
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SENATE ENERGY AND NATURAL RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
FORT LINCOLN ROOM 

SENATOR DONALD SCHAIBLE, CHAIRMAN 

ALAN ANDERSON - COMMISSIONER, ND DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

L \  

Good morning, Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, my name is Alan Anderson and I 
serve as the Commissioner for the No1ih Dakota Department of Commerce. As Commerce 
Commissioner I also have the pleasure of serving as the chainnan of the EmPower North Dakota 
Commission. 

The EmPower North D akota Commission was established by the 2007 legislative assembly and 

made permanent b y  the 2009 legislative assembly. Its members are appointed by the Governor. 
It is an industry l ead effort that allows all of our energy industries, both renewable and 
traditional, to have a voice into the state' s energy policy. A copy of the EmPower North Dakota 
20 1 4  Policy Updates and Recommendations is provided for your reference. 

On behalf of the EmPower ND Commission, I am here today to speak in favor of Senate Bill  
2032 .  This i s  a bil l  that was recommended by the Commission and approved by the interim 
Energy D evelopment and Transmission committee. A complete l ist of bil ls  recommended and 
supported by the Commission is below : 

• Senate Bil l  No. 2032 - Oil and Gas Development Strategic Planning Authority. 
• Senate Bil l  No. 2033 - Oil & Gas Tax Trigger Mechanism. 
• Senate Bi l l  No. 2034 - Oil Gathering Pipelines Sales Tax Exemption. 
• Senate Bill  No. 2035 - Value-Added Energy Facility Sales Tax Exemption. 
• Senate Bill  No. 2036 - Coal Beneficiation. 
• Senate Bil l  No. 2037 - Wind Energy Incentives & New Coal Mine Sales Tax Exemption. 

Senate Bil l  2032 establishes an Oil and Gas Development Strategic Planning Authority as part of 
the Industrial Commission. The structure of thi s  planning authority is modeled after the Pipeline 
and Transmission Authorities, which are both part of the Industrial Commission. 

The Oil and Gas D evelopment Strategic Planning Authority would be funded using the Oil & 
Gas Research Fund, the same mechanism used for the Pipeline Authority. To be clear, you will 
not see this funding in the executive budget recommendation, j ust as you would not see the 
Pipeline Authority funding. 

The EmPower ND Commission recommends the creation of this authority focused on regional 
infrastructure (roads, airports, emergency and medical services, water and waste water, etc.) that 
will work with communities in coordinating strategic planning efforts in the hub cities of 
Dickinson, Minot and Williston, and primary Bakken counties of Dunn, McKenzie, Mountrail 
and Williams. These efforts should:  
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• Provide periodic updates and evaluation on the progress of infrastructure development 
and future needs to the legislature in regards to state and community planning and 
investments. 

\ .l 

• Work in cooperation with the Energy Impact Coordinator to understand local issues and 
efforts. 

• Assist in data gathering and coordination of infrastructure funding, providing 
recommendations with input from local communities and distributing agencies. 

This authority is intended to be a resource for both communities, as well as state policy makers. 
It will act as a coordinator of studies and information to help identify and address needs 
associated with oil and gas development. The planning authority will not itself be making any 
decisions. 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Energy and Natural Resources Committee, I respectfully 
request your favorable consideration of Senate Bill 2032 .  That concludes my testimony and I am 
happy to entertain any questions. 
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Executive S u m ma ry 
T h rough t h e  E m Pow e r  N o rth D a kota Com m iss ion,  leaders from a l l  m ajor  e n e rgy i n d u str ies i n  North 

Da kota m eet regu l a r ly  with one common goa l :  to be c rit ica l t h i n ke rs for the d evelopment of the state's 

e n e rgy res o u rces.  

The strategic  p a rt n e rs h i ps betwee n  N o rt h  Da kota ' s  long-sta n d i n g  and e m e rg ing e n e rgy i n d ustries 

e n a b l e  a l l  sectors of t h e  i n d ustry to work toget h e r  as t h ey meet o u r  state's a n d  cou ntry's energy needs 

without gover n ment m a ndates. 

N orth D a kota i s  p roactive a n d  a ggressive in  a d d ress i n g  e n e rgy deve l o p ment a n d  serves as a model 

for Amer ica  i n  foster i n g  i n n ovative, long-term e n e rgy strategies to m eet our nation's grow i ng energy 

d e m a n d  a n d  n e ed for e n ergy secu rity i n  a n  e nv i ronme nta l ly respons i bl e  m a n n e r. 

T h e  state's d ivers e  e n e rgy l a ndsca p e  celebrates m a ny s uccesses: 

• N o rt h  D a kota is t h e  second l a rgest oi l -p rod u c i n g  state i n  t h e  nat ion a n d  wou ld  be t h e  2 0th l a rgest 

p rod u c i n g  cou ntry in the world with p rod u ct ion of one m i l l ion ba rrels per  day as of A p r i l  2014. The 

i n d u st ry h a s  over 10 ,10 0  p rod u c i ng o i l  we l ls ,  e m p l oys 6 5,000 d i rect a n d  i nd i rect j o bs ,  has a $ 3 0  

b i l l i o n  e co n o m i c  i m pact, a n d  contri b utes $ 11 m i l l ion p e r  day t o  t h e  state a n d  pol it ica l s u bd iv is ions 

i n  o i l  p rod uct ion taxes. 

• Uti l ity com p a n i es p roduce 4 ,000 megawatts of l ign ite a n d  othe r  coa l gen e rat ion at s even locations 

p rovid i n g  l ow cost, re l i a b l e  e lectr ic power to two m i l l ion c u stom e rs in N o rt h  Da kota , South Da kota , 

M i n n esota , Monta n a  a n d  Iowa . N orth Da kota is one of t h e  cou ntry's top 10 coa l -prod uc ing states, 

m i n i n g  a pp roxi m ately  30 m i l l i o n  ton s  every yea r  s i nce 1988,  w h i c h  resu lts in a n  a n n ua l  economic 

i m p a ct of $3 b i l l io n .  
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Executive S u m m a ry (continued) 
N o rth  D a kota leads the  nat ion i n  the p rod u ction of  10 d ifferent a gr icu l tura l  com mod ities i n c l u d i n g  

two com mod ities used for l i q u i d  fuels .  Severa l a d d it iona l c rops p rov i d e  fee d stock for succ essfu l a n d  

d eve lop ing  b io-refi n i ng i n d ustries i n  N o rth Dakota . 

Betwee n  2 007-2012 N o rth  D a kota i n c reased its energy p rod uction by 179 . 7  p e rcent .  

• N o rth  Da kota has  gone from 1 . 0  percent of the U.S .  energy p rod uct ion to 2 .  7 p e rcent  a n d  from 

b e i n g  23'd to 12th a m o n g  U.S.  states betwee n  2007-2012.  

N o rth  D a kota conti n ues to d evelop a thr iv ing ethano l  i n d u stry, w h i c h  ra n ks 9th i n  the natio n .  I t  

contri butes more than $640 m i l l ion  a n n u a l ly to the economy a n d  s u pp orts m o re than 10,000 

d i rect and i n d i rect jobs.  T h e  state has esta b l is hed itself  a s  a nati o n a l  leader in f lex fue l  p u m p  

i nfrastructure a n d  h a s  seen a 5 0  p e rcent i ncrease i n  flex fuel  veh ic les  over t h e  p a st t h re e  yea rs with 

9 8 , 100 c u r rently on the road .  

• T h e re a re 2 2  natura l  gas p rocess i n g  p l a nts operati n g  i n  western N o rth  D a kot a .  T h e  o i l  a n d  gas 

i n d u stry is  i nvest i n g  over $6 b i l l ion i n  i nfrastructu re to ca ptu re natu ra l  gas ,  a n d  fou r  a dd it i o n a l  new 

o r  expa nded p l a nts a re p l a n ned to come o n l ine by 2 0 16 .  Natura l  gas gat h e r i n g  systems c o n nected 

to 2 ,020 wel ls  in 2013,  up 1 13 percent from 949 wel ls  in 2011.  

• I n  2013,  N o rth  D a kota ra n ke d  1 2th i n  the  nation in i nsta l led w i n d  e n e rgy c a p a c ity. T h e  N o rth  D a kota 

P u b l ic Service Comm ission h a s  perm itted over 1 , 6 7 2  m egawatts of w i n d  gen e ratio n .  

• T h e  state's o n ly o perat ing  o i l  refi nery h a s  expa nded to 7 0,000 ba rrels p e r  d ay. I n  a d d it io n ,  a 

20,000 ba rrels per  d ay d iesel  top p i n g  refi nery is under  construct ion with an expected com p l et ion by 

Decem be r  2 014 . A n u m be r  of other  refi n e ries a re i n  va r ious stages of p l a n n i ng a n d  p e rm itt i n g. 
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Futu re Visio n  

N orth Da kota's futu re is one where many of the energy sectors have the potentia l  to not only grow, but a lso 

develop new econom ies based on va l ue-added opportun ities related to energy resou rces. In order to move 

forwa rd , the state needs to add ress several key areas crucial  to the expa nsion of energy prod uction and 

extraction .  North Da kota needs to work with the ind ustry to begi n explor ing ways to capture opportun ities to 

develop raw resou rces into new prod ucts, inc lud ing petrochemica ls,  p lastics, nanofibers, man ufactured prod ucts 

or mater ia ls yet to be d iscovered . 

The Em Power North Da kota Com mission has identified five critica l components for cont inu ing to grow energy 

prod uction a n d  new energy-related industries: 

1. I nfrastructure - U p-to-date i nfrastructure is the fou ndation for conti n u i ng existi ng development and 

expa n d i ng i nto new areas. 

2. Workforce - As the energy ind ustry expa nds, the workforce m ust be ava i lable to meet the dema nds. 

3. Research and Development - Research and development serves as the bridge for industry to move from 

concepts to new development and commercia l ization .  

4 .  Regulatory Environ ment - A regu latory environment, at both the federa l  and state levels, that encourages 

economic  growth wh i le  ensuring envi ron mental ly-responsib le development of natu ra l  resou rces is 

essentia l .  

5. Energy G rowth I ncentives - New and conti n ued i ncentives a re needed to capital ize on development 

opportu n ities across North Da kota 's energy sectors. 
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E m Powe r N D  
Co m m iss i o n  
M e m bers 
I n  2007, the North Dakota Legis lature 

forma l ized energy pol icy a n d  created 

the 16-m e m ber Em Powe r Co m m ission 

which i ncl udes rep resentatives from 

across the energy i n d ustry. Th e i r  

i nsights provide t h e  su bsta n ce for 

this u pdated Em Power N o rth Da kota 

Com prehe nsive State E n e rgy Pol i cy. 

Eric Mack 
Archer Daniels Midland, 

biodiesel 

Ron Ness Dale Niezwaag 
North Dakota Petroleum Basin Electric Power Cooperative, 

Council, oil and gas 

'�-- ., · ·· "  

. ) r . 

. � ·. 

generation and transmission 

electric cooperatives 

Randy Schneider Jay Skabo David Straley 
North Dakota Ethanol 

Producers Association, 

ethanol 

Julie Voeck 
NextEra Energy Resources, 

LLC., ex officio 

Montana-Dakota Utilities Co., North American Coal 

investor-owned util ities Corporation, lignite coal 

producing industry 



Com m ission Recommendations 

N FRASTR UCTU R E  

Adeq uate i nfrastructu re - such a s  water p ipel ines, 

roads, o i l  a n d  natu ra l gas p ipe l ines, ra i l roads, electric 

tra nsmission l i nes, power generation and afforda ble 

housing - is key to the effic ient and effective 

development of North Dakota 's energy resou rces. 

Wh i le  most cu rrent i nfrastructure needs a re related 

to o i l  a n d  gas development in western North Da kota , 

a l l  energy sectors benefit from s imi lar  i nfrastructure 

support thro ughout the state. I nfrastructure provides 

the backbone for North Da kota 's energy industry to 

export prod ucts to the rest of the nation,  and perhaps 

the wor ld . I n  add ition ,  th is component is critica l 

to the growth of com m u n ities, the m i n i m ization of 

development i m pacts, a n d  en ha nced publ ic  safety. 

The 2013 Legislative Assem bly made su bsta ntia l  

p rogress towa rds meeting the critical i nfrastructure 

needs of the state with an i nvestment of $2.5 b i l l ion  

i n  o i l  and gas i mpacted a reas, nea rly doub le  the 

amount a p p ro priated in 2011. However, continued 

growth of o u r  energy industry and the state's 

economy a re lead ing  to i nfrastructure shortfa l ls and 

more m ust be done to assist commun ities i n  closing 

the ga p. 

The Em Power North Da kota Commission receives 

regu lar  u pdates from the North Da kota Depa rtment 

of Commerce staff rega rd ing contin ued western 

Adequate infrastructure 

is key to the efficient and 

effective development of 

North Dakota's energy 

resources. 

needs. Of the many concerns raised by loca l leaders, 

i nfrastructure issues were identified as critical to 

ma inta in ing North Da kota 's q u a l ity of l ife. I n  order 

to meet the growing dema nds of western North 

Da kota , the state needs to continue to make a long­

term com m itment of ca pita l to add ress the acute 

i nfrastructure shortfa l ls related to the sign ificant 

growth of oil and gas production ,  processing and 

tra nsportation fac i l ities. 

Transportation i nfrastructure development i ncl udes 

construction and u pgrad ing of roads and bridges 

on state, cou nty and townsh i p  systems. In 2013, 

western North Dakota experienced a 25 percent 

increase in veh ic le m i les traveled. As o i l  and gas 

activities conti n ue, as wel l as agricu ltura l  movement, 

this i ncreased traffic w i l l  c reate greater need and 

frequency for repa i rs and replacement. The Upper 

G reat Pla ins Transportation l nstitute's 2014 study 

Commission Recommendations 6 



In  2013, western North 

Dakota experienced a 

25 percent increase in  

veh icle mi les traveled. 

I N FRASTRUCTU RE (continued) 
of cou nty, townsh i p  and tr ibal transportation 

i nfrastructure needs estimates the fol lowi ng state 

i nvestment is needed for the 2015-2017 bien n i u m :  

• U npaved roads - $548 m i l l ion  

• Paved roads - $377 mi l l ion 

Bridges - $70 m i l l ion 

N ew methods to provide adequate fu nd ing to add ress 

these critica l areas m ust be designed.  Without a 

new a pproach,  local  governments and com m u n ities 

w i l l  continue to fa l l  behind resu lting in contin ued 

impact on development and qua l ity of l ife. Concerns 

related to environ menta l issues l i ke increased dust 

from trucks, proper storage of waste water, and 

others m ust a lso be addressed. Cha l lenges a lso exist 

in the construction of necessary i nfrastructu re as 

la ndowners become rel uctant to gra nt easements on 

their property. 

In l ight of the issues fac ing infrastructure re lated to 

energy development in the state, the Comm ission 

u rges the State of North Da kota to: 

Su pport the passage of legislation with i n  the 

first 30 days of the 2015 legislative session 

provid ing infrastructure fu nd ing to o i l  and gas 

i m pacted areas to ensure early ava i lab i l ity of 

adequate fu nd ing to a l low b idding processes 

to occur  and resu lt in t imely use of the 2015 

construction season .  

Su pport changes to the gross prod uction tax 

d istri bution formula to provide addit ional fu nd ing 
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to assist with local  infrastructu re needs . 

Su pport a tra nsportation fun d i ng level that meets 

the needs identified by the U pper Great P la ins 

Transportation I nstitute. 

Recom mend the i mmediate creation of a n  

a uthority focused on regiona l  i nfrastructu re 

( roads, a i rports, emergency a n d  medical  

services, water and waste water, etc . )  that w i l l  

work with com m u n ities i n  coord i n at ing strategic 

p lann ing efforts i n  the h u b  cities of Dick inson ,  

M i not and W i l l isto n ,  a n d  pr imary Ba kken cou nties 

of D u n n ,  McKenzie,  M o u ntra i l  a n d  Wi l l i ams. 

These efforts shou ld :  

o Provide period ic u pdates a n d  eva l uation on 

the progress of  i nfrastructure deve lopment 

and futu re needs to the legislatu re i n  regards 

to state a n d  com m u n ity p la n n i ng a n d  

i nvestments. 

o Work i n  cooperation  with the Energy I m pact 

Coord i nator to understa nd loca l issues a n d  

efforts. 

o Assist i n  data gatheri ng a n d  coord i nation 

of i nfrastructure fund i ng, p rovid ing 

recom mendations w ith i nput from loca l 

com m u n ities a n d  d istri but ing agencies. 

Create a trigger m echan ism that wi l l  make 

additional  funds ava i lab le  to o i l  im pacted 

com m u n ities from the state share of the o i l  

tax revenue when revenue exceeds certa i n  

thresholds. 

• Su pport expa nsion of exist ing water systems to 

provide capac ity to meet growing com m u nity a n d  

commercia l  needs. 

Su pport the State Water Comm ission's efforts 

to i ncrease access to La ke Saka kawea water for 

com m u n ity a n d  commercia l  needs to a l leviate 

pressure on other water sources, red uce loca l 

truck traffic and i m prove road safety. 

• Mon itor the ra i l road i nfrastructu re u pgrade p lan  

with i n  North Dakota to  ensu re there is adequate 

ab i l ity to the meet the expo rt demand of a l l  

commod ities to market. 

• 

• 



WORKFORCE 

North Dakota has one of the best business c l imates 

in the cou ntry fue l i ng u n precedented growth,  lead ing 

to a shortage of workers i n  v irtua l ly every ind ustry 

a n d  every corner of o u r  state. As a resu lt, secu ring 

sk i l led workforce to meet the needs of the state's 

business com m u n ity is a h igh prior ity. As the state's 

demand for workers cont in ues to grow, there needs to 

be greater focus on tra i n i n g  and reta in ing our  youth,  

as wel l  as p romoting o p po rtu n ities to attract workers 

from outside the state. 

The need to recru it a n d  reta in a permanent workforce 

is evident i n  the fo l lowing statistics: 

25,000 jobs a re cu rrently open across 

North Dakota . 

25,000 jobs a re 
cu rrent ly open across 
No rth  Da kota.  Over 
60 percent of these 
exist outs ide the o i l  
and  gas counties. 

• North Dakota is expected to add over 76,000 jobs 

between 2010 a nd 2020. 

• Healthca re, construction ,  energy, manufactur ing, 

tra nsportation ,  pub l ic  services, agricu ltu re, 

tou rism and reta i l  a l l  report sign ificant workforce 

shortages. 

The State's workforce needs are not j ust l im ited to the 

o i l  and gas ind ustry. 

About 35 percent of a l l  cu rrent job openings are 

energy related .  

About 8 5  percent o f  private jobs i n  the state are 

not o i l  and gas re lated . 

The Fargo area has the most job openings i n  the 

state, fo l lowed by Bismarck.  

As workforce needs continue to grow, the fu nding 

sources that support infrastructure and com m u n ity 

development m ust be enhanced. Compan ies and 

private investors a re work ing to add ress housing 

shortages th roughout the state by providing crew 

ca m ps, apartments, s ingle- and mu lti-fami ly homes. 

S ingle fa m i ly housing is very i m portant to attract 

the h igh-demand,  h igh-sk i l led workforce the energy 

industry needs long-term. The state must continue to 

su pport the key i nfrastructure that supports the ease 

of development in many of our  western com m u n ities. 
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WORKFORCE (continued) 
Many of the state's new fa m i l ies a lso have un ique 

financia l  needs. The Housing I ncentive Fu nd ,  

admin istered by the North Da kota Housing Fina nce 

Agency, is work ing to meet the need for affordable 

housing, but greater enhancements are necessa ry. 

One of the cha l lenges i m pacti ng the energy ind ustry's 

ab i l ity to attract qua l ified employees is the lack of 

knowledge about the tremendous opportun ities 

for you ng people in the energy ind ustry. Many h igh­

dema nd positions i n  several energy sectors rely 

heavi ly on ski l ls in science, techno logy, engineering 

and mathematics (STEM).  I n corporating STEM 

courses at a n  earl ier age and educating ca reer 

counselors and pa rents about h igh-demand 

careers wi l l  fac i l itate the long-term growth of the 

energy workforce ta lent poo l .  To improve the overa l l  

situation ,  the energy ind ustry and research counci ls  

su pported the development of cu rricu l u m  for 

grades 4 and 8 which w i l l  be rol led out in Fa l l  2014. 

Discussions with offic ia ls at the Depa rtment of Pub l ic  

Instruction were i n itiated to u nderstand how best 

to deve lop h igh school curricu l u m .  These efforts 

are on-goi ng. Curricu l u m  development, however, 

is only pa rt of the puzzle. Energy representatives 

a lso met with representatives from Va l ley City State 

U n iversity to d iscuss STEM education i n itiatives and 

the opportu n ity for energy cu rricu l u m  development to 

tra in students pursuing teacl1 i ng degrees. Whi le  great 

strides have been made in cu rric u l u m  development, 

the needs for securing a stab le fu nd ing sou rce for 

curricu lum mai ntenance and contin ued development 

is critica l .  
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The cu rrent workforce la ndsca pe has many vocationa l  

or techn ical degree openi ngs that  can provide wel l  

payi ng, l ife-long ca reers ( i .e . ,  wel ders, l i neman ,  

electricians, bo i lermakers a n d  mecha n ics). 

Many of the current energy-related workforce needs 

could be fi l led by i n d iv iduals with vocational  or 

techn ical sk i l ls .  

Industry and education groups need to cont inue 

to work together to bring awareness to career and 

specia l ized tra in ing opportun ities i n  North Da kota . 

The State of North Dakota and the energy ind ustry 

must continue to strengthen exist ing partnersh ips to 

educate students of a l l  ages a bout the wide variety 

of vocational and techn ical degree openings. Focus 

on this effort has proven successfu l ;  for exa mple, at 

the recently expa nded d iesel mecha nic  progra m at 

North Dakota State School of Science in  Wa h peton ,  

most graduates leave with a North Da kota-based 

position in-ha nd as the school partners with business 

to meet critica l workforce needs. The development of 

more tra in ing progra ms focused on meeting growing 

workforce requ i rements w i l l  need continued support 

by the legislature, Em Power N orth Dakota Com m ission 

and others. Adequate fu nd ing m ust be ava i lable for 

these important educational  progra ms that support 

energy-related careers. 

Also su pporti ng the i n d ustry is Tra i n N D, wh ich 

provides custom ized tra i n i ng progra ms such as COL 

and safety tra in ing, a n d  emp loyee development 

i n itiatives across the state. These tra in ing p rogra ms 

give North Da kota businesses a n  edge to better 

• 



WOR KFORCE (continued) 
compete on a loca l ,  nationa l  and i nternational level .  

Conti n ued support for programs such a s  Tra i n N D  a n d  

Operation I ntern ,  wh ich m atch youth with businesses 

whi le  su ppo rting long-term workforce growth in North 

Da kota , a re c ritica l .  

I n  a n  effort to assist with workforce dema nd,  the 

North Da kota Economic  Development Fou ndation 

has lau nched the F ind  the Good Life in North Da kota 

campaign,  a workforce recruitment effort. It is a 

private/pub l ic  sector fu nded program designed to 

he lp  solve the greatest cha l lenge fac ing our  business 

com m u n ity: workforce development, recruitment and 

retention.  The fu n d ra is ing goa l of  $2.5 m i l l ion wi l l  

fu nd a comprehens ive two-year ca mpaign focused 

on increasing workforce with i n  North Da kota a nd 

securi ng out-of-state workers and students to fi l l  h igh­

demand ca reers. The ca m paign works with North 

Da kota compan ies a n d  i n d ustry organ izations to 

promote jobs through strategies such as out-of-state 

job fa i rs,  vetera n recru itment and other efforts. 

The energy i n d ustry looks to the Governor's Workforce 

Development Counc i l  and Job Service North Dakota 

to better identify energy workforce needs and how 

North Dakota can maxim i ze resou rces to meet those 

needs i nto the future.  These efforts wi l l  ensure that 

Governor Da l rymple a n d  the legislatu re receive 

the i nformation necessary to susta i n  the long-term 

growth of the energy sector in North Da kota . 

I n  l ight of the issues facing workforce related to 

energy development i n  the state, the Com mission 

u rges the State of North Da kota to: 

• Conti nue support of the Housing Incentive Fu nd 

to the level suggested by the North Dakota 

Housing F ina nce Agency to meet ma rket 

cond itions, a n d  consider a trigger on an a n nual  

basis for add it iona l  fu nds.  

• I ncrease efforts to educate North Dakota 's 

youth a bout the state's natura l resou rces by 

fu n d i ng the development, implementation and 

susta i nab i l ity of cu rricu lum at the elementary and 

h igh-school leve l to encourage interest i n  energy 

careers through the North Dakota Depa rtment of 

Publ ic  I nstruction.  

Encourage and enable the energy ind ustry to 

col laborate with the North Da kota Un iversity 

System,  Governor's Workforce Development 

Cou nc i l ,  Job Service North Da kota and other 

agencies to: 

o Encourage industry i nteraction with teachers 

and gu ida nce counselors to grow youth 

knowledge and i nterest in ene rgy ca r eers 
and to better reta i n  youth for h igh-dema nd 

ca reer options. 

o Provide greater accessib i l ity to career and 

techn ica l education progra ms, especia l ly 

through adequate tra i n ing fac i l ities. Career 

exa mples inc l ude, but a re not l im ited to: 

Science, techno logy, engineering, and 

mathematics (STEM )  education 

I nd ustr ia l  equ ipment suppl ier supported 

progra ms 

Commerc ia l  d river's l icense (COL) 

tra i n i ng sites 

Emergency medical  services 

Techn ica l  trades/ i nternships 

Energy ca reers 

Workforce safety ca reers 

• Support i ncreased fu nd ing for workplace safety 

and tra i n i ng. Exa m ples of efforts i nclude: 

o Tra i n i ng workforce safety professionals 

o New-h i re tra i n i ng 

o Back-to-work efforts 

• Su pport legislation which recognizes the role 

dista nce learn ing w i l l  play i n  the future of 

education and improve access to technology for 

students using d ista nce learn ing progra ms. 
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPM ENT 

A key component to assur ing the use of our va l uable 

natura l resources now and i nto the futu re is resea rch 

and development ( R&D).  The state has been a leader 

in  fostering R&D partnersh ips between private 

industry, h igher education and research fac i l ities. 

As R&D fu nding is red uced at the federa l  leve l ,  the 

state's ro le a long with its partners is even more 

critica l i n  fi nd ing ways to uti l ize North Da kota 's vast 

energy resou rces. Through exist ing R&D progra ms, 

the state has the potential  to a l low R&D to u ndertake 

a new role in understa nding the synergies between 

renewa ble a nd tradit ional  energy resources. 

For trad it ional fuels l i ke l ign ite, o i l  a nd natura l  gas, 

R&D provides a road map for the development of 

new technologies that w i l l  provide fewer em issions 

and cleaner energy in the exploration stage or  in the 

energy conversion process. For insta nce, l ign ite R&D 

projects a re exa m i n i n g  new ways to lower mercu ry, 

n itrogen oxide a nd su lfu r d ioxide em issions. The 

l ign ite R&D is focused on preserving the exist ing fleet 

of l ign ite based pla nts by developing new options 

for control of criteria po l l utants such as N Ox, meta ls 

l i ke merc u ry and C02 capture and sequestrat ion.  I n  

add ition ,  new techno logies for options to produce 

low cost energy based on l ign ite that ca n meet the 

environ menta l  cha l lenges u nder today's regulatory 

c l imate a re u nder development. Approxi mately $8 

m i l l ion  is ava i lable each bien n i u m  to fu nd the l ign ite 
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Th rough existing R&D progra ms, 

the state has the potential  

to al low R&D to undertake a 

new role in  ensu ring the future 

prosperity of North Dakota 's vast 

energy resou rces. 

R&D progra m.  The fu nd ing  is derived from two cents 

per ton R&D tax, a dedicated percentage of the Coa l 

Trust Fund a nd for a l i m ited t ime a portion of the 

coa l conversion tax. A port ion of th is fu nd ing is a lso 

used by the North Da kota Tra nsmission Authority to 

work on tra nsmission issues which ca n l i m it energy 

development opportu n ities i n  the state. 

The potentia l  opportu n ities for secondary o i l  and gas 

recovery in North Da kota a re in the very early stages 

of development. The i m portance of p u rsu ing these 

opportun ities is demonstrated by what is cu rrently 

being done at the Dakota Gasification Com pa ny's 

p lant in  Beulah where C02 is captu red and del ivered 

by pipel ine to the Weybu rn o i l  fie ld  in Saskatchewa n ,  

Ca nada . I t  i s  est imated that t h e  C 0 2  be ing i njected 

wi l l  extend that fie ld 's prod uctive l ife for 25 years and  

resu lt i n  prod uction  of  as much as  130 m i l l ion  barrels 



RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (continued) 
of o i l  that m ight otherwise have been aba ndoned. 

More resea rch and techno logy development needs to 

occur  to better understan d  how co2 i njection or other  

methods of enhanced o i l  recovery ca n be app l ied i n  

North Da kota 's o i l  s h a l e  p lay. 

The phenomena l growth over the past few yea rs 

i n  o i l  a n d  gas p roduction is pr imar i ly due to the 

uti l izat ion of new tech nologies and practices. 

Research a n d  deve lopment is needed to foster 

enhanced o i l  recovery i n  the Ba kken and Th ree 

Forks Formations as wel l  as otl1er legacy Formations. 
Other potentia l  formations a re cu rrently being 

stud ied and wait for that " key" to un lock these 

natura l  resou rces for p rod uction .  Through the 

Bakken O pti m izat ion Progra m ,  the oil and gas 

R&D progra m - in partnersh ip  with ind ustry, the 

Energy a n d  Envi ron m e nta l Research Center and 

h igher ed u cation - is looking for the best methods 

to ca ptu re the oil and gas resou rces that remain 

undergro u n d  and to d o  it with m i n i m u m  im pact to 

the land .  This p rogra m inc l udes research on waste 

m i n i m ization a n d  uti l i zation ,  sp i l l  remed iation and 

land recla mation .  Fu n d i ng for the o i l  and gas R&D 

p rogra m is a p p ro p riated i n d i rectly from the o i l  and 

gas prod uction taxes at $ 10 m i l l ion per b ienn ium.  A 

portion of th is  fu n d i ng is used to provide staff for the 

P ipel ine  Authority and to ca rry on  the Author ity's work 

on oil a n d  gas tra nsportation issues. 

The renewa ble R&D p rogra m is funded at $3 m i l l ion  

per  bien n i u m  from the state's Resou rces Trust Fu nd .  

Th is  progra m p ro m otes the  growth of  North Da kota 's 

renewa ble energy i n d u stries through resea rch,  

development, ma rket ing and education .  Fu nded 

projects have i nc l uded the development of new 

renewa ble feedstocks, as we l l  as technologies to 

process renewa ble energy. 

As a l l  o u r  energy resou rces a re developed, 

these resea rch progra ms can play a critica l 

role in advanc ing va l u e-added processing and 

man ufactur ing across the state . The IHS study 

comm issioned by the legislatu re is one step in  that 

process. Now the work m ust conti nue in identifying 

Simi lar  to the tremendous 
growth witnessed in va lue­
added agricu lture, North 
Dakota can become a 
leader in  va lue-added 
manufactur ing related to oi l  
and gas development. 

the specific opportun ities that the state can 

pa rtner with the pr ivate sector to continue to grow 

the state 's economy for years to come. S imi lar  to 

the tremendous growth witnessed i n  va lue-added 

agricu ltu re, North Dakota can become a leader 

in va l ue-added m a n ufactur ing re lated to energy 

development. 

In l ight of the issues and opportu n ities need i ng 

resea rch and development related to energy 

resou rces, the Com m ission u rges the State of 

North Da kota to: 

Continue  to suppo rt exist ing R&D programs to 

ensure the development and imp lementation of 

new technologies and promote new growth for 

a l l  energy resources. Consider increasing the 

funding level for l ign ite research a nd oi l and gas 

research progra ms. 

• Su pport the add it ional  appropriation of research 

do l la rs to be used by the l ign ite and oil and gas 

research cou nc i ls to support R&D activities 

to resolve the techn ical problems associated 

with the commerc ia l  deployment of carbon 

capture technologies, seek add itional incremental 

improvements in  the recovery of oil through 

enhanced oi l  recovery using C02 or other gases, 

and develop and fu nd a FEED study to identify 

commercial opportun ities associated with the 

beneficial capture and use of C02 as well as the 

need to meet the region's growing energy demand. 

Create and i m plement a strategy to assist North 

Da kota in developing viable petro- and bio­

chem ical industries. 
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REGU LATORY ENVI RONM ENT 

Current EmPower North Da kota Com mission goa ls 

and pol icy statements reflect concerns rega rd ing the 

existing federal regu latory c l i mate that often fa i ls  

to provide for reasonable,  respons ib le  and cost­

effective regu lations over many facets of the energy 

i ndustry. The Com m ission's goa ls and pol ic ies can be 

summa rized as stated below: 

The federal government should provide a fair and 
responsible regulatory environment based on sound 
science and the capacity of current technology 
to ensure future energy development. Federal 
regulations must be cost-effective and include 
sufficient lead time for industry to adapt to new 
statutory requirements affecting production or 
products. Federal regulations must be structured 
in ways to minimize placing new barriers on 
investment and development. 

The current federa l  regulatory environment 

i ncorporates a "one-size-fits-a l l "  pol icy that fa i ls  to 

take i nto account the u n ique nature of each state. 

North Dakota should encou rage federal agencies to 

recogn ize u n ique environ menta l  issues and to work 

with the state to develop regu lations that a re flexi b le,  
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sensible and a l low for state agencies to have pr i macy 

i n  the progra m .  

U nderstanding the economic i m pact o f  federal  

regu lations on the state's economy is also i m porta nt. 

The energy industry ca n serve as a va luab le  a l ly in 

he lp ing the state identify and a n a lyze the i m pact of 

federal regu lations on the citizens of North Da kota, 

as well as the energy ind ustry. S imp ly  u ndersta nd ing 

the i mpact of  federa l  regu lations, however, is 

o n ly one part of the equation .  Prov id ing i n put to 

federal regu lators on pa rticu la r ly onerous proposed 

regu lations is a crucia l pa rt of the overa l l  strategy 

to protect the state's i nterest. Equa l ly  i mporta nt a re 

com mun ications with the North Da kota congress iona l  

delegation on federal regu lations of  i mporta nce to 

the state. 

North Dakota must a lso recognize both the growth 

of a l l  energy sectors and the add it ional  b u rdens 

new regu lations place on state regu latory agencies. 

Appropriate regu latory progra ms a re a necessary part 

of ensu ring that North Da kota ca n ma inta i n  its c lea n 

environ ment i n  conj unction  with a hea lthy business 

environ ment. Staff and resou rces for state regu latory 

agencies need to expa nd to ma nage federal  

regu latory req u i rements and to ensure North Dakota 

reta ins pri macy over these regulatory p rogra ms. 



REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT (continued) 

In light of the issues facing federal regulatory 

assessment related to energy development in the 

state, the Commission urges the State of North 
Dakota to: 

• Encourage federal agencies to recognize 

environmental issues unique to North Dakota 

and work with state agencies to develop 

regulations that are flexible, sensible and allow 

for state primacy. 

o Encourage state agencies to provide regular 

updates on energy-related issues to the 

Commission and identify ways in which the 

Commission can support agency efforts on 

federal issues. 

0 Establish new venues for state and federal 

regulatory agencies to collaborate on federal 

rulemaking efforts in ways that address 

individual state issues. 

• Use the Em Power North Dakota Commission to 

better understand the economic impact of federal 

regulatory proposals on North Dakota. 

o Comment on proposed federal regulations 

with significant potential impact on the 

state's economy and engage the North 

Dakota Congressional delegation to 

actively challenge the implementation of 

final regulations posing a threat to North 

Dakota 's economy. 

• Recognize the additional burdens new energy 

development and regulations are placing on 

state regulatory agencies and provide adequate 

funding and staffing levels for the North Dakota 

Department of Health, North Dakota Department 

of Mineral Resources, North Dakota Public Service 

Commission, and North Dakota State Water 

Commission to ensure that each will be able to 

properly manage their respective programs. 

0 Support legislative solutions which allow 

state agencies to design competitive 

compensation and benefit packages in 

order to attract and retain experienced 

employees in the disciplines related to 

energy development. 

• Encourage the State of North Dakota to identify 

North Dakota-based solutions to manage waste 

generated from energy production. 



ENERGY GROWTH INCENTIVES 

North Dakota's energy industry growth has been 

phenomenal. While overall production of various 
forms of energy is at an all -time high, the state is on 

the brink of moving to the next level of production 

- adding value to each of our energy resources. 

The first steps in this journey were realized with 

the natural gas and ethanol value-added studies 

conducted during the present biennium. The 

EmPower North Dakota Commission guided these 

studies and supports the recommendalions of eacl1. 

These studies, however, reflect just the beginning of 

a number of initiatives lead by various energy sectors 

focused on discovering new ways to bring value to 

existing and new resources. 

As the State and industry teamed together in these 

efforts, a key component that should not be lost 

is maintaining North Dakota's business friendly 

environment. While new initiatives will mean 

hundreds of millions of dollars of new investment in 

North Dakota, industry has always been able to rely 

on the State's willingness to offset a portion of the 

initial investment through tax incentives. 

In light of the opportunities related to the next phase 

of energy development, the Commission urges the 

State of North Dakota to: 

• Support incentives to expand value-added 

energy opportunities. 

o Provide a sales tax exemption for value­

added energy facilities including both 

equipment and building materials, similar 

to the existing incentive for value-added 

agriculture. 
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Support incentivizing or enhancing C02 capture, 

storage and enhanced oil recovery opportunities. 

Support an extraction tax credit on oil extraction 

for the development of technologies for beneficial 

use of drill cuttings. 

Support incentivizing or enhancing remote 

natural gas capture technology to minimize 

flaring. 

Support incentives to expand natural gas or 

liquid natural gas markets. 

Ensure tax certainty for wind to encourage 

future investment in renewable wind resources, 

recognizing the strategic role wind will play in 

continuing to enhance North Dakota 's diverse 

energy portfolio. 

• Support incentivizing the co-location of energy­

related infrastructure in the same right-of-way. 

• Support removing the beneficiation tax for coal 

conversion facilities that are subject to coal 

conversion tax. 

Support removing the sunset on the severance 

tax exemption for beneficiated coal used in 

agricultural commodity processing facilities. 

Remove the sunset on the sales tax exemption 

for beneficiated coal when used in agricultural 

processing facilities. 

Support a sales tax exemption for oil 

gathering lines. 



BIOD I ESEL 

BIOMASS 

EN ERGY 
EFFIC IENCY 

ETHANOL 

L IGN ITE 

NATU RAL GAS 

North Da kota biod iesel production uses about 65 percent of the state's canola 

production,  or  a bout 700,000 acres worth of ca nola .  

Researchers at North Dakota State Un iversity continue the development 

of hybrid ized biomass i n  pel let form for use i n  manufactur ing processes. 

Biocomposite pel lets could replace up to 40 percent of petroleum-based plastics 

used in manufactur ing. 

Energy conservation efforts hel ped weatherize over 4,000 homes for low-income 

ind iv iduals across North Dakota . 

The ethanol  i ndustry contributes more than $640 m i l l ion a n n ua l ly to the state's 

economy a nd supports more than 10,000 jobs. 

North Dakota 's l ign ite i nd ustry generates 4,000 megawatts of electricity to 

2 m i l l ion  customers a n d  an economic i m pact of over $3 b i l l i on .  

The oi l  a nd gas industry is i nvesting over $ 6  b i l l ion  i n  i nfrastructure to  capture 

natural gas, and fou r  add itiona l  new or expanded p lants a re p lanned to come 

o n l i ne by 2016. 

North Dakota 's o i l  ind ustry generates more tha n  $30 b i l l ion  of economic activity 

01 L and supports 35,000 d i rect workers and more than 65,000 ind i rect jobs across 

a l l  sectors of the economy. 

PETROLEU M 
MARKETI NG 

REFI N I N G  

SOLAR, 
G EOTH ERMAL, 

HYDROG EN & 
HYDRO POWER 

TRANSM ISSION 

WI N D  

Over 500 m i l l ion ga l lons of d iesel fuel a re being used a n n ua l ly i n  o i l  activity, i n  

comparison to a n n ua l  consumption across t h e  state of 1 b i l l i o n  ga l lons. 

In  add ition to Tesoro Mandan Refinery, North Da kota 's second refinery -

Da kota Prair ie Refinery, LLC - is sched uled for start-up in December 2014. 

The Garrison Da m on the M isso u ri R iver, with a ca pacity of 583 megawatts, is 

North Dakota 's 5th la rgest p lant in electricity generation capacity. 

Bas in  E lectric Power Cooperative, I nc. received a p p rova l from the North Dakota 

Publ ic Service Com mission for their  200-mi le 345 kV l i ne from the Antelope 

Valley Station to a substation located nea r Tioga. 

Since 2012, the North Da kota Publ ic  Service Com mission has approved wind 

projects with tota l i nvestments estimated at $ 1.33 b i l l ion .  



BIODIESEL 

Biod iesel is a c lean burn ing  a lternative fuel  produced 

from renewable domestic resou rces that can he lp  

na rrow the energy supply and demand ga p. I n  North 

Dakota , biod iesel is pr imari ly produced from ca nola 

oi l  feedstock, but can be made from a ny vegeta ble 

oi l  as wel l  as from a n ima l  fats or used fryi ng o i ls  from 

restau ra nts a nd/or food man ufacturing p lants. The 

biod iesel i ndustry is sti l l  in the defi n i ng stages of 

development in the U n ited States. The volati le U .S. 

Biodiesel B lenders Cred it has made it d ifficu lt for 

smal ler  p la nts to stay in business over the past few 

yea rs. Cu rrently, there is one biod iesel prod uction  

fac i l ity operati ng i n  North Da kota , ADM Velva. L im ited 

demand for biod iesel from with in  the state of North 

Da kota w i l l  l i m it the poss ib i l ity of any new prod uction  

p lants i n  the state. 

H ighl ights inc l ude: 

North Da kota biodiesel production uses about 65 

percent of the state's canola prod uction ,  or a bout 

700,000 acres worth of canola. 
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Each bushel of canola ca n produce 2.9 ga l lons of 

biodiese l .  

The A D M  Velva p lant br i ngs jobs and new tax 

base i nto the a rea. 

The North Da kota State Resea rch Center i n  M inot 

has been operat ing a fie ld p lot tractor fueled 

by 8100 ca nola biod iesel for ten yea rs with no 

mechan ica l issues. 

Si nce the cano la  biod iesel p lant was bu i lt, North 

Da kota canola fa rmers have e njoyed h istorica l ly 

h igh ca nola seed prices. 

State fu nding through the Centers of Exce l lence 

in itiative has fostered a partnersh ip  between 

North Da kota State U n iversity a n d  M onsa nto to 

increase acreage a n d  o i l  content of ca nola . The 

release of this n ew canola l i ne i n  the near future 

wi l l  expa nd acreage a n d  yields,  increasing the 

ava i lable feedstock for biod iesel production in 

North Da kota . 

I nvestments i n  the Renewa ble Energy 

Development Fu n d  have ena bled the Energy and 

Environ menta l  Resea rch Center to  deve lop a bio­

based d iesel w ith tra its identica l to petro leum­

based d iese l .  The Biofuels PACE Program rema ins 

ava i lab le as a fi na ncing incentive for new b iofuel  

production fac i l ities i n  North Da kota . 

Each bushel  of canola 

can prod uce 2.9 ga l lons 

of biod iesel .  

• 

• 



BIO ASS 

North Dakota 's b iomass i n dustry has potential for sign ificant contribution to the state's economy as it evo lves. 

Both North Dakota State Un iversity and the Energy & Environ menta l Resea rch Center, U n iversity of North Da kota , 

have n u m erous p rojects u nderway for biomass uti l i zation .  These projects i nc lude a wide va riety of uses from 

gasificatio n  techno logy to nanofibers. In addition, there a re industry efforts u nderway to use crop resid ues and 

wood waste for ethanol  o r  other energy a ppl ications. Commercial  app l ication  is yet to be ach ieved as the state 

works to grow s u p port for biomass as a viable i ndustry in North Da kota . 

H ighl ights inc lude:  

• Research sponso rs and North Da kota State Un iversity conti nue to work actively toward fi na l iz ing a business 

p lan  a n d  develop ing the first energy beet to etha nol commercia l  i nsta l lation.  Energy beet fie ld tr ials a re being 

conducted at five regional  locations across North Da kota i n  a n  effort to study productivity and susta inab i l ity. 

Beet a n d  j u ice storage stud ies a re a lso being conducted. 

• North Da kota State U n iversity has a lso developed the biomaterials used i n  the "b io-boom,"  a hybrid of 20 to 

30 percent renewa ble biomaterials,  flax fiber and fi berglass used i n  a crop sprayer man ufactu red by AGCO 

Corporatio n .  

• M idwest AgEnergy is constructing Da kota Spi rit AgEnergy at Sp i ritwood , with the i ntent of prod ucing 65 m i l l ion 

ga l lons per yea r of ethanol .  Once the backbone conventional  ethanol  fac i l ity is i n  operation ,  potential use of 

biomass at the fac i l ity w i l l  be eva l uated aga in .  

• North Da kota State Un ivers ity researchers are col la borati ng with several compan ies, inc lud ing Composite 

I n n ovations Centre i n  W i n n i peg, Man itoba. The research stud ies renewa ble b iomateria ls  - ca nola,  soybeans, 

flax and m o re - i n  combination with petroleum-based polymers and p lastics for a n  array of products. 

• Resea rchers at North Da kota State Un iversity conti nue to research the development of hybrid ized biomass 

in pel let form for use i n  man ufactur ing processes. Biocomposite pel lets cou ld  replace u p  to 40 percent of 

petro leu m-based plastics used in ma nufacturi ng. 

Energy Sector Updates 18 



ENERGY EFFICI ENCY 

Energy efficiency conti n ues to be a h igh pr iority 

in homes and pub l ic  bu i ld i ngs a round the state. 

Over 11,000 energy efficiency and renewa ble 

energy rebates were given out to North Dakota 

residents and businesses resu lt ing i n  $3.4 m i l l ion  

in  energy cost savings.  

H ighl ights inc lude: 

The 2013 Legislature provided for a tra nsfer of 

one-half of one percent i n  the o i l  extraction tax 

deposited in the Resou rces Trust Fu nd to the 

energy conservation fu nd for pub l ic  bu i ld ings, not 

to exceed $ 1.2 m i l l ion  per bien n i u m .  

Us ing State Energy P l a n  fu nd i ng, the North 

Da kota State Un iversity ( N DSU) Agricu ltu ra l  

and Biosystems Engineering Department and 

N DSU Extension Service provided education and 

techn ica l assista nce on energy efficiency a n d  

conservation through progra ms such as Home 

Energy 101, home bu i lders educational  sem inars ,  

4-H leader tra i n ing on the i m portance of  home 

energy, and energy savings opportun ities related 

to gra i n  d ryi ng. 

Energy conservation efforts he lped weatherize 

over 4,000 homes for low-i ncome ind iv idua ls 

across North Da kota . 

North Da kota ns' received 3 ,800 rebates (at $ 150 

each)  for  EN ERGY STAR refrigerators, saving 

approxi mate ly 2 m i l l ion k i lowatt hours a n n u a l ly. 
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Over $900,000 a n n ua l ly 

wi l l  be saved from the 

i m plementation  of energy 

savings measu res in  19 

North Da kota state fac i l it ies 

such as the State Ca p itol ,  

North Da kota State School 

of Science a nd U n iversity of 

North Dakota . 

Approxi mately 197 local  govern ment bu i ld ings 

in 120 com m u n ities have been retrofitted 

th rough the Energy Effic iency a n d  Conservation 

Block G ra nt ( made poss ib le  w ith ARRA fu nd ing), 

annua l ly saving over $ 1.1  m i l l i on .  

Over $900,000 a n n ual ly  w i l l  be saved from the 

imp lementation of energy sav ings measu res in 

19 North Da kota state fac i l ities such as the State 

Capito l ,  North Dakota State School of Science 

and Un iversity of North Da kota . 

The state b u i l d i ng code now encompasses the 

2009 I nternationa l  Energy Conservation Code 

and the I nternationa l  Residential  Code energy 

efficiency requ i rements. • 



ETHANOL 

The ethano l  i n d ustry contributes more than $640 

m i l l ion  a n n ua l ly to the state's economy and su pports 

more than 10,000 jobs. North Da kota 's ethanol  

p la nts e mploy nea rly 200 workers d i rectly in  positions 

such as chemists, engineers, accountants, ma nagers 

and su pport staff. The average a n n ua l  wage for 

a n  ethanol  p lant employee i n  North Dakota is 

approxi mately $64,000. 

H ighl ights i nc l ude: 

North Da kota ra n ks 91h i n  the nation for 

ethano l  p rod uctio n .  

North Da kota 's ethano l  industry h a s  t h e  capacity 

to prod uce: 

o 400 m i l l ion  ga l lons of ethanol ,  more than 10 

t imes the a m o u nt produced i n  2005. 

o 1.3 m i l l ion  tons of d ry d isti l lers gra i ns, a h igh­

va l ue l ivestock feed.  

o 6 m i l l ion  ga l lons of corn o i l ,  used i n  the 

biod iesel i n dustry. 

• Each North Da kota ethanol  plant is located in a 

com m u n ity with a popu lation of less than 2 ,500 

a n d  contri butes an average of 49 jobs and an 

average a n n u a l  payro l l  of $3.3 m i l l ion  to the 

com m u n ity. 

• Approximately n i ne percent of the 400 m i l l ion 

ga l lons of ethano l  produced a n n ua l ly in North 

Da kota is b lended with gasol ine and sold with i n  

t h e  state. 

North Da kota ethanol  p la nts use a pproxi mately 

140 m i l l ion  bushels of corn a n n u a l ly with more 

than 80 percent of the corn p u rchased from 

North Da kota fa rmers. 

North Da kota is a nationa l leader i n  the 

estab l ishment of flex fuel pumps and was the 

n i nth state to offer E15 .  There a re a lso 98,100 

flex fuel veh icles ( FFV), more than a 50 percent 

i ncrease si nce 2011. 

• Etha nol  is blended with nea rly 85 percent of 

the taxa ble fuel sold i n  North Da kota , wh ich is a 

nea rly 30 percent increase from 2012. 

The ethano l  industry pa rtnered with the state 's 

corn growers and the Renewable Energy Progra m 

to imp lement a two-yea r  ethanol  ma rketing 

ca mpaign.  Over the l ife of the ca mpaign, there 

was a 36 percent increase i n  statewide etha nol 

sa les from 2010 to 2013. 

• A bio-refi nery is u nder construction nea r 

Ja mestown.  It is a 65-m i l l ion  ga l lon  per yea r 

conventiona l  d ry m i l l  ethanol  p lant and is 

projected to be completed i n  the spr ing of 2015. 

• North Da kota 's etha nol industry is reviewing the 

resu lts of the Study to Eva l uate Va l ue-Added 

Ma rket Opportu n ities for Ethanol  Produced i n  

North Da kota conducted by IHS Chemical  a n d  

considering futu re opportun ities. 
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LIGN ITE 

North Dakota 's l ign ite industry is a vital part of the 

state 's economy with an economic  i m pact of more 

than $ 3  b i l l ion .  The state supports 4,000 megawatts 

of l ign ite and other  coa l generation at seven locations 

provid ing low cost, rel iab le  and c lean e lectric power 

to two m i l l ion  customers in North Da kota, South 

Da kota , M i n nesota , Montana and Iowa. North Dakota 

is one of the country's top 10 coa l-prod uci ng states, 

m in ing approxi mately 30 m i l l ion  tons every yea r si nce 

1988. 

Nearly 80 percent of the l ign ite coa l m i ned a n n u a l ly 

is used to generate e lectricity. About 13 percent is 

used to make synthetic natura l gas that is del ivered 

to 400,000 homes a n d  busi nesses in the eastern 

U n ited States, and seven percent is used to produce 

ferti l izer products conta i n ing a n hyd rous a m monia 

and a m mo n i u m  su lfate. 

H igh l ights i nc lude: 

The 99 megawatts Sp i ritwood Station nea r 

Jamestown was comm issioned i n  2011. The pla nt 

is cu rrently awa iting completion of the adjacent 

steam host to a l low the pla nt to generate with the 

econom ics of a combi ned heat and power p lant 

as designed. 

• The G reat Pla i ns Synfuels P lant (Synfuels 

P lant), owned by Da kota Gas ification Company 

(Da kota Gas), is the o n ly commercia l -sca le coa l 

gasification  p lant i n  the U .S .  man ufactur ing 

natu ra l gas. Average da i ly prod uction of natu ra l  

gas i s  a bout 153 m i l l i on  c u b i c  feet, t h e  majority 

of which is used in the eastern Un ited States. 

Nea rly 80 percent of 

the l ign ite coa l mined 

a n n ual ly is used to 

generate electricity. 
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The Synfuels Pla nt supp l ies carbon d ioxide to 

the wor ld's la rgest ca rbon capture and storage 

project in the wor ld in Saskatchewan ,  Ca nada,  

for use i n  enhanced o i l  recovery. Da kota Gas 

currently captu res between 2.5 and 3 m i l l ion  

metric tons of  co2 per year. 

Dakota Gas exports a bout 152 m i l l ion  cubic feet 

per day of C02 to Ca nada - a bout 50 percent of 

the C02 produced when r u n n i ng at ful l  rates. As 

of 2013, Dakota Gas has captured a l m ost 25 

m i l l ion metric tons of  C02. 

Through 2013, more than 27,000 acres of m i ned 

land i n  North Da kota have gone through fina l  

bond release, equ iva lent to  over 42 square m i les. 

o A portion of rec la i med land has been devoted 

to pub l ic  use such as H armony Lake a n d  Coa l 

La ke which can now be used for h u nting, 

fish ing, photography, b i rd i ng, canoei ng, 

boating a n d  other outdoor activities. 

o Bas in  Electric Power Cooperative's 

Glenharo ld  m i ne received its fina l  bond 

release i n  2012. Over its 30 yea r prod uctive 

l ife the m i ne won th ree nationa l  awards for its 

recla mation  work. 

• As of 2014, the Lign ite Resea rch Cou nci l  is 

pa rtic ipating i n  20 research and development 

projects worth over $ 180 m i l l i o n .  Many of these 

projects focus on ways to red uce, ca pture and 

store C02• 

• 

• 



NATURAL GAS 

North Da kota p rod uced 347 b i l l ion cubic feet of 

natura l gas ,  processed 233 b i l l ion cu bic feet of 

natura l gas and pa id  $22 m i l l ion  in prod uction 

taxes in 2013. Natural  gas gathered and ca ptu red 

i n  North Da kota heats over 4.8 m i l l ion homes in the 

U .S. Over the past two yea rs, North Da kota 's natu ra l 

gas industry has worked hard to connect more than 

3 ,800 new we l ls  to gas p lants. 

There a re 22 natural gas processing p lants operati ng 

i n  western North Da kota . The o i l  and gas ind ustry is 

investing over $ 6  b i l l i on  i n  i nfrastructure to ca ptu re 

natu ra l gas, a n d  fou r  add it ional new or expa nded 

p lants a re p l a n ned to come o n l i ne by 2016. These 

plants w i l l  add more than 400 m i l l ion cu bic feet of 

gas process ing ca pacity and create hundreds of h igh­

payi ng jobs in ru ra l  com m u n ities. 

H igh l ights inc lude:  

Natura l  gas gathering systems were con nected to 

2,020 we l ls  i n  2013. This is u p  113 percent from 

949 wells connected i n  2011. 

The North Da kota I n dustria l  Commission ,  through 

the O i l  a n d  Gas Research Progra m in pa rtnersh ip  

with private pa rties, has  invested more than 

$ 10 m i l l ion  i n  research for new technologies to 

produce, captu re a n d  use natu ra l gas at wel l  

sites. T h e  resu lts a re i ntended to encourage a n d  

promote t h e  u s e  o f  new technologies that have a 

positive economic a n d  environ mental impact on  

o i l  a n d  gas exp loration .  Exa m ples inc l ude: 

o A $450,000 gra nt awarded to the Energy & 

Envi ronmenta l Research Center to use for 

en ha nced recovery of o i l  and natu ra l gas i n  

North Dakota . 

o An $8 m i l l ion  grant awarded to the Energy 

& Environ menta l Resea rch Center to use for 

opt im iz ing o i l  and natu ra l gas production i n  

North Dakota . 

o An $873,300 gra nt awarded to Ba kken 

Express, LLC to use toward a $3 m i l l ion 

natu ra l gas captu re i n itiative. 

o A $750,000 gra nt awarded to Energy & 

Envi ron mental Research Center to use toward 

a $ 1.9 m i l l ion natu ra l  gas ca ptu re i n itiative. 

o A $375,000 gra nt awa rded to Bla ise Energy, 

I nc. to use towa rd a $ 7.475 m i l l ion natural 

gas captu re in itiative. 

• Natura l  gas l iqu ids p resent many opportun ities 

for va l ue-added energy. A study on va lue-added 

opportu n ities relati ng to natu ra l gas l iqu ids and 

ethanol  was commissioned by the North Da kota 

Department of Commerce a n d  was publ ished i n  

May 2014. 

As of 2012, North Da kota is the 14th largest 

natu ra l gas p roduc ing state. 
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O I L  

North Da kota 's o i l  i n d ustry generates more than 

$30 b i l l ion  of  economic  activity a n d  supports 

35 ,000 d i rect workers a nd more than 65 ,000 

i n d i rect jobs across a l l  sectors of the economy. 

The necessa ry job sk i l l s  conti n ue to b roaden as 

i n d ustry m oves from the exp loration phase towa rds 

the deve lopment phase.  

As more new wel ls begi n prod uci ng, more techn ica l ,  

perma nent jobs w i l l  resu lt. The average a n n u a l  wage 

for an o i l  industry employee i n  North Da kota in 2012 

was approximately $97,841, which is 118 percent 

a bove the statewide average wage of $44,914. 

H igh l ights inc lude:  

• North Da kota is the second la rgest o i l-produc ing 

state i n  the nation a n d  wou ld  be the 20th la rgest 

prod ucing cou ntry i n  the world . 

• I n  Apr i l  2014, there were over 10,100 o i l  we l ls  

prod ucing 1 m i l l ion  barrels of o i l  per  day. 

• 

Oi l  production taxes i n  2013 exceeded $2 .9 

b i l l ion .  Monthly o i l  tax col lections exceeded $300 

m i l l ion i n  March 2 014. 

O i l  and gas prod uction taxes accounted for 

50 percent of North Da kota 's tota l revenue 

col lections i n  2013. 

At $ 100 and 1 m i l l i on  BOPD, the industry 

contri butes $ 11 m i l l io n  per day to the state and 

pol itica l subs (from the two o i l  taxes). Of  this,  

$ 1  m i l l ion per day goes to the cou nties/cities/ 

schoo ls/townshi ps. 

In May 2014, North Dakota 's Legacy Fu nd ,  which 

receives 30 percent of the o i l  tax revenue,  has a 

balance of more than $2 b i l l ion do l la rs. 

• 



PETROLEU M MAR KETING 

North Da kota petro leum marketers a re dedicated 

to prov id ing q ua l ity prod uct, great customer service 

and cont inue to be strong com m u n ity leaders and 

suppo rters. Consumer  demand a lways has and 

a lways wi l l  d ictate what a petro leum reta i ler  offers 

its customers.  

The u n precedented economic  growth i n  the 

state has been very good for the reta i l  petro leum 

i n d ustry. O n e  of the m ajor  cha l lenges a m idst a l l  

the prosperity has been fi nd ing adequate su pp l ies 

of d iese l ,  gas a n d  even p ropane, pa rticu la rly 

d u r ing peak d e m a n d  seasons for the ind ustr ia l  a n d  

agricu ltu ra l  sectors. Workforce ava i l a b i l ity rema i ns 

a major  concern i n  the reta i l  service a rena with 

strong, h igh payi ng jobs develop ing across the state 

in a l l  sectors of the economy. 

H igh l ights i nc l ude:  

There a re roughly 500 petroleum marketers 

in North Da kota. There a re a lso about 750 

conven ience stores/truck stops across the state. 

Th is  n u m be r  has grown sign ificantly in the past 

few years as the state's economy contin ues to 

prosper a n d  expa nd .  These operations dea l  i n  

every aspect o f  refi ned petro leum and renewa ble 

fuel products ra nging from wholesale and supply 

to the n u merous reta i l  outlets scattered across 

the state. 

• From Apri l 2013 to Apr i l  2014,  reta i l  petroleum 

dea lers sold a bout 500 m i l l ion ga l lons of taxab le 

gasol ine  i n  the state as wel l  as c lose to one 

b i l l ion ga l lons of taxa ble d iesel fue l .  This figure 

does not take i nto accou nt the roughly 900 

mi l l ion ga l lons of d iesel fuel so ld for non-h ighway 

use vita l to agricu ltura l ,  industr ia l  and energy 

sectors with i n  the state. Over 500 m i l l ion  ga l lons 

of d iesel fuel a re being used a n nua l ly i n  oi l  

activity a lone.  

• North Da kota petro leum marketers cont inue to 

support research and development of renewa ble 

fuels as viable sou rces of a lternate energy. 

North Dakota gas reta i lers have been among 

the nation's leaders in  promoting the sale of 

renewa ble fuels. North Da kota insta l led more than 

220 flex fuel pumps, but as of December 2013 

study that nu m ber has decreased to about 100 

due to a n um ber of factors. The North Da kota 

petroleum retai lers a nd ethanol industry contin ue 

to work together to address these issues. 



REFI N I NG 

North Da kota 's refi n i ng ca pacity cont in ues to 

expa nd with the conti n ued growth of the Bakken O i l  

p rod uction .  Severa l new refi nery projects a re bei ng 

eva l uated statewide.  

H igh l ights inc l ude: 

North Da kota currently has one refinery in 

operation,  Tesoro Mandan Refinery, with a crude 

operating capacity of 70,000 barrels per day. 

A second fac i l ity, Dakota Pra i r ie Refi nery, LLC, is 

u nder construction and is sched u led for start-up 

in December 2014. The Da kota Pra i rie Refinery 

w i l l  have a crude capac ity of 20,000 ba rrel per 

day and wi l l  p rod uce 7 ,000 to 10,000 ba rrels per 

day of diesel and other byproducts. It is the fi rst 

refinery bu i l t  in the U.S.  si nce 1976. 
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Severa l other d iesel topping plants a n d  refi nery 

projects a re currently being eva l uated.  These 

projects include a 20,000 ba rrel per day 

d iesel topping plant near Trenton (Da kota O i l  

Processi ng) and a 15,000 barrel p e r  day refinery 

nea r Ma koti [Mandan,  H idatsa,  a n d  Ar ika ra 

(MHA) Nation] .  These projects a re i n  va r ious 

plann ing stages. 

The Da kota Pra i ri e  

refi nery is  the fi rst 

refi nery b u i lt i n  the 

U .S.  si n ce 1976. 



SOLAR, GEOTHERMAL, HYDROGEN & HYDRO POWER 

North Dakota has invested in research for hydrogen , solar and geothermal applications. This includes $2.5 

million for a Centers of Excell ence project at the Energy & Environmental Research Center 's National Center 

for Hydrogen Technology, which is attracting hydrogen-based business to the state; funding for research at 

University of North Dakota for commercial application of geothermal ; and funding for solar energy research at 
North Dakota State University. 

Highlights include: 

Several electric cooperatives offer a program to help ranchers install solar powered stock pond watering 

pumps in rural areas where it is uneconomical to construct electric transmission lines. As an example, 

Verendrye Electric Cooperative has provided support for over 300 solar pumps and avoided building about 

300 miles of distribution line at a savings of about $30,000 per mile. 

• Whiting Oil uses solar PV systems at oil well sites to power pump jacks in isolated areas in which electrical 

services is not available. 

• The Geothermal Laboratory at the University of North Dakota is conducting a geothermal power 

demonstration project in North Dakota in collaboration with the U.S. Department of Energy, Continental 

Resources, Inc., Slope Electric Cooperative and Access Energy, LLC. Start-up is scheduled for Summer 2014. 

The objective of the project is to demonstrate and test the technical and economic feasibility of generating 

electricity from non-conventional , low-temperature geothermal resources using Organic Rankine Cycle (ORC) 

technology. 

• The Garrison Dam on the Missouri River, with a capacity of 583 megawatts, is North Dakota 's fifth largest 

plant in electricity generation capacity. 



TRANSM ISSION 

The deve lopment of  new tra nsm ission i n  N o rth 

Da kota cont in ues as compa n ies construct l i nes to 

su ppo rt new load growth as we l l  as to connect new 

generation  to the e lectr ic  gr id .  Stud ies to identify 

i m pacts of n ew load on exist ing tra nsm ission 

systems and identify new l i nes needed for the futu re 

conti n ue at i n d iv idua l  compa n ies a n d  at regiona l  

tra nsm ission p la n n ing e ntities. 

H ighl ights i nc l ude: 

• North Da kota Tra nsm ission Authority conducted 

a study of the i m pact of o i l  and gas development 

in the Wi l l iston Bas in  on  electric load growth a n d  

tra nsm ission i nfrastructure.  

• Basin E lectric Power Cooperative, I nc.  received 

approva l from the N o rth Da kota Pub l ic  Service 

Comm ission for their  200-m i le 345 kV l i ne 

from the Ante lope Va l ley Station to a su bstation 

l ocated nea r Tioga. Construction  wi l l  b gi n i n  

Fa l l  2014 once federa l approva ls a re received . 

This new l i ne w i l l  he lp  meet i ncreasing regiona l  

electric demand and i m p rove the rel iab i l ity of 

the existi ng system ,  strengthen i ng the electric 

i nfrastructu re th roughout the region .  

• Bas in  Electric Power Cooperative a n d  the 

Western Area Power Adm i n istration a re moving 

forward with p lans to join the Southwest Power 

Poo l  (SPP) Regional  Tra nsm ission O rgan ization .  

F ina l  approva ls w i l l  be  sought i n  2014 and ,  i f  

successfu l ,  the two orga n izations w i l l  begi n 

actual  operations with SPP i n  2015. 

• M i n n kota Power Cooperative is constructi ng 

a 345-kV tra nsm ission l i ne that w i l l  stretch 

250 m i les from Center to G rand Forks, to be 

completed by August 2014.  

• Ca pX2020 is a gro u p  of 11 M idwest-based 

uti l it ies constructi ng m o re than 700 m i les of 

n ew 345 kV tra nsm ission l i nes i n  the u pper 

M idwest. One of the proposed routes is a 

2 10-m i le  l i n e  that starts west of Fa rgo a nd 

stretches east to St. C loud ,  M i n n esota . The l i ne 
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is expected to be i n  service i n  2015 a n d  w i l l  

support growing regi o n a l  power dema n d  a n d  

i m p rove access to ren ewa b le  energy. 

• Otter Ta i l  Power Com pa ny a n d  Montana-Dakota 

Uti l ities Co. have joi ntly proposed the Big Ston e  

South to E l lenda le ( BSSE) Tra nsm ission L ine,  a 

345-kV l i ne from E l lenda le to a su bstation near 

Big Stone City, South Da kota . The project, which 

w i l l  be a pproxi m ate ly 150 to 170 m i les i n  length,  

is  a nticipated to cost between $270 a n d  $390 

m i l l ion and wi l l  be i n  service i n  2019. 

ALLETE and its s u bsid iary ALLETE Clea n Energy 

have proposed a n  energy corr idor with a 

backbone fol lowing a n  exist ing 465-m i l e  path 

that conta ins a d i rect current tra nsm ission l i ne 

runn ing between Center a n d  D u l uth,  M innesota 

The energy corr idor wou ld  expa nd a pathway 

a long strategic portions of the existing right of way 

to min imize land use and  opt imize energy del ivery 

infrastructure development with i n  North Dakota . 

It is envisioned that various lengths of the corridor 

would be used for movement of natural gas, 

wastewater, petro leum and other products. 

Tra nsmission costs va ry depending on voltage, 

terra i n  type, conductors, length , r ight-of-way costs 

and many othe r  factors. M a ny sou rces a ro u n d  the 

cou ntry report that average tra nsm ission costs 

for a new 345 kV l i ne ca n be between $1 and 

$2 m i l l ion per  m i le ,  depend ing  on design a n d  

environmenta l cond it ions.  

M a ny sou rces a ro u nd the 

cou ntry report that average 

transm iss ion  costs for a n ew 

345 kV l i ne ca n be between 

$1 a n d  $ 2  m i l l i o n  per m i le ,  

depe n d i ng o n  d esign a n d  

envi ron m e nta l con d it ions. 

• 

• 



Ove r the last few yea rs, many of the region 's  ut i l it ies 

completed construct ion of wind fac i l it ies i n  o rder to 

comply with renewa b le  portfo l i o  sta n d a rds i n  states 

su rrou n d i n g  N o rth Da kota , meet i nterna l  pol icies 

re lated to d iverse energy portfo l io  sta ndards, 

sec ure a fixed pr ice energy source, or  to meet other  

bus i ness goa ls .  S i nce 2008, the  w ind  ind ustry in  

North Da kota has fou n d  itse lf i n  a state of tra nsit ion .  

D ri ven by a n u m be r  of factors, i n c l u d i ng the 

econom i c  s lowdown ca u sed by the 2008 recess ion 

and  the resu lti n g  dec rease i n  demand for electric ity, 

prices fo r e lectr ic power have fa l len  s ign ifica ntly a n d  

regi ona l  congest ion  o n  t h e  tra nsmission system has 

i mpacted the construction of new wind faci l it ies. I n  

add ition  to these i n d u stry cha l lenges, the uncerta i n  

futu re o f  Prod uction Tax Credit ( PTC) ,  wh ich 

Congress has yet to extend beyond December 2013, 

l i ngers as wel l .  Yet, in s pite of these issues, the 

ca pac ity of the wind i n d ustry grew dur ing the last 

yea r, but  at a m uch lower rate than i n  recent yea rs.  

Despite the va r ious c h a l l e nges, wind energy 

prices have decreased s ign ificantly over the past 

seven yea rs. Effic ienc ies in techno logy a n d  ma rket 

pressu res have d r iven w ind  energy prices down over 

50 percent to meet m a rket demands.  

H igh l ights inc l ude:  

• Si nce 2012, the North Da kota Publ ic  Service 

Com m ission has a p p roved wind p rojects with 

tota l nameplate ca pacity of over 700 MW. 

If these approved p rojects a re constructed, the 

tota l i nvestment associated with the projects is 

est imated at $ 1.33 b i l l ion .  

M o re than 990 wind turbi nes are operati ng in  

2 6  North Da kota cou nties. 

M ore tha n 990 wind 

t u r b i n es a re operating i n  

2 6  North Da kota cou nties. 

There a re currently 700 megawatts of w ind under 

construction i n  2014. 

North Da kota ra n ked twelfth in the nation in  

wind ca pacity at the end of 2013, with 1 ,672 

megawatts of wind i n  service. 

• I n  the last two years, i nsta l led wind ca pacity in  

the state grew by o n ly 104 megawatts, compa red 

to 250 MW in the pr ior two-year period . 

Demand for wind is a nt ic i pated to be strong with 

w ind  energy being a sca lab le ,  cost- effective, 

em ission-free renewa ble resou rce in the regio n .  

Recent wind energy pr ices have m a d e  w i n d  more 

attractive to many ut i l it ies, regu lators and end 

users.  There is a lso fede ra l  regu latory pressu re 

moving the energy generation ind ustry towa rds 

c lea ner, renewa ble resou rces l i ke w ind  energy. 

The M idcontinent I ndependent System Operator, 

I nc. ( M ISO) is responsib le for ope ration of the 

tra nsm ission grid across a l l  or  pa rts of 15 states, 

( i nc l u d i ng portions of N o rth Da kota) a n d  the 

Canadian p rovince of M a n itoba .  The u pgraded 

M ISO tra nsm ission system has i m p roved re l iab i l ity 

a n d  a l lows for add it iona l  w ind  energy to be 

con nected to the gri d .  The expa nsion of the grid w i l l  

a l low for add it iona l  amou nts of  new wind energy on 

the regiona l tra nsm iss ion  system .  

N o rth Da kota i s  wel l-posit ioned to deve lop 

add it iona l  w ind  energy and become a la rger 

exporter of wind energy. 
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Senate Energy and Natural Resources Committee 
January 8, 2015 - 10 a.m. - Fort Lincoln Room 

North Dakota Department of Transportation 
Scott D. Zainhofsky, PE - Director, Planning/Asset Management Division 

SB 2032 

?_.\ 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, my name is Scott Zainhofsky. I serve as the 
Planning/Asset Management Division Director for the North Dakota Department of Transportation 
(DOT). 

I am here today on behalf of the Department to provide information pertinent to SB 2032, a bill that 
would establish an oil and gas development strategic planning authority. 

The DOT supports the concept of additional planning for the entire state of North Dakota. Our intent, 
today, is to provide information to you to ensure there is no duplication of efforts, should you decide to 
establish the subject planning authority. Per Century Code 24-01-01, the DOT is charged with working 
with local governments to ensure an integrated transportation system is established. The DOT has a long, 
successful history of multi-modal transportation planning throughout North Dakota. Examples of recent 
planning projects include: 

• Statewide long range transportation plan (TransAction Ill) 
• Update to state roads Highway Performance Classification System (HPCS) 
• State Freight Plan and energy corridor designations 
• Four oil-county study - refining the integrated system with the four largest oil producing counties. 
• Various needs studies in cooperation with the Upper Great Plains Transportation Institute 

o State system 
o Urban system 
o Regional Rail 
o Transit 

• Various city and county transportation and comprehensive plans 
• Statewide Local Road Safety Plans 
• Among many others 

We have a good process in place that prioritizes improvement projects from a statewide perspective. The 
DOT works with local authorities to program transportation projects into the Statewide Transportation 
Improvement Program (STIP) for bidding and construction. Additionally, the DOT is coordinating 
project bidding and timing with local government authorities to ensure construction effort and public 
disruption are reduced to the extent practical. 

In order to provide you with additional information on DOT planning programs we have attached 
documents describing some of the transportation planning efforts the ND DOT has underway or recently 
completed. 

Thank you for attention. At this time, I would be glad to answer any questions . 
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NDDOT Statewide Planning Initiatives 

The ND DOT has utilized performance management to assist in the management of the State' s 
transportation assets since the early 2000s with the adoption of the Highway Perfom1ance Classification 
System (HPCS). The HPCS is comprised of a five level classification system with varying performance 
expectations from each classification. The levels include: Interstate; Interregional; State Corridors; 
District Corridors; and District Collectors (see Figure 1). Generally, the HPCS is utilized in consideration 
of the physical design of roadways, establishing maintenance priorities, establishing expected or desired 
functional service characteristics, and informing investment decisions. Recently, the NDDOT has been 
working to enhance the existing performance management concept. To this end the Department is 
working to develop an enhanced set of measures to evaluate the performance of the State' s rural 
transportation system in areas such as: pavement and bridge condition; safety; freight and traveler 
operational conditions; and operational reliability. 

State Highway Performance Classification System 
2012 
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Figure 1. HPCS Map 

Recently, the ND DOT embarked on the development of the North Dakota State Freight Plan that 
attempts to meet North Dakota's unique freight challenges, as well as the goals of the State' s freight 
transportation stakeholders. By reaching out to a variety of stakeholders, the general public and 
surrounding states and provinces, the draft plan identifies freight-system trends, issues, and concerns and 
suggests policy-based strategies for improving the state ' s freight transportation system. The draft plan 
may be viewed at the following website: http://www.dot.nd.gov/divisions/planning/freight/ 
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The NDDOT and Upper Great Plains Transportation Institute (UGPTI) are finalizing a variety of studies 
to identify the resources necessary to adequately address existing and projected demand on the states 
multimodal transportation system. A statewide needs analysis assesses the State's  roadway network, as 
well as roadway infrastructure needs for North Dakota' s  urban areas. A short-line rail needs study 
evaluates the 1 ,085 miles of in-service rai l  line operated by the State 's  three largest short-line railroads 
including: Red River Valley and Western; Dakota Missouri Valley and Western; and Northern Plains 
Railroad. Additionally, a statewide transit study assesses the existing and projected capital needs of the 
rural and urban transit providers. 

The State ' s  long range transportation plan (TransAction III) provides guidance and direction for the 
development of North Dakota' s  transportation system. Development of the plan rel ies heavily on 
transportation-stakeholder and public involvement to establish the State's  values related to transportation. 
The p lan seeks to develop goals and objectives to address existing and projected transportation issues and 
needs related to North Dakota. This plan i s  typically updated on a five-to-seven (5-7) year cycle, with the 
last update published in late 20 1 2. 

The State' s  Strategic Highway Safety Plan (SHSP) provides guidance for a multi-disciplinary approach to 
highway safety, with the ultimate goal of eliminating fatal and serious-injury crashes on all  public roads 
in the state of North Dakota. The current SHSP was published in September 20 1 3, after an extensive 
outreach effort involving state, federal,  local, and tribal governmental entities, private sector foundations 
and associations, law enforcement, emergency-services personnel, transportation engineers, and the 
public, among others. The resulting document was branded with the tag-line "Code for the Road" and 
identified six (6) emphasis areas resulting from an analysis of the leading contributing factors to fatal and 
serious injury crashes in the state. The SHSP also documents recommended proven-effective strategies to 
mitigate those factors. The six emphasis areas are (in descending order of 2007-' 1 1  crash correlation): 
Lane departure; Unbelted vehicle occupants; Alcohol ;  Speeding/Aggressive driving; Younger drivers 
(under 2 1  ); and Intersections. Additionally, the SHSP process identified that about half of fatal and 
serious injury crashes were occurring off the state system and on the local road system. As a result, the 
NDDOT initiated the Local Road Safety Program which deploys a systemic safety analysis using 
geometric and traffic characteristics as surrogates for risk. Local road safety plans identifying road 
segments and proven-effective safety solutions are being developed for all 53 counties, as well as the 1 2  
urbanized areas (cities with a population of 5000 or more), four tribes, and a national park. The plans are 
being used by local and state personnel to assist with proj ect-level safety-investment decisions. 

North Dakota' s  current rail plan was developed in 2007. The environment inn uc:m: ing rai l  transportation, 
since the current plan was developed, has changed significantly in recent years. Therefore, this plan is due 
to be updated. 

NDDOT employs a sophisticated process of project selection to develop the Statewide Transportation 
Improvement Program (STIP) . The Programming Division develops the STIP using a variety of tools and 
input (both internal and public); these inputs include: District project nominations, pavement 
management information, bridge management information, traffic volume data, H ighway Performance 
Classification System guidelines, maintenance information, public and governmental entity comments, 
geographic workload distribution, distribution of work types to support and align with industry resources, 
and the available funding, among others. 

Many of these processes and plans are highly influenced by federal regulations tied to various funding 
eligibility . 
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Local Planning Initiatives 

As the Committee is aware, many of North Dakota ' s local jurisdictions have experienced dramatic 
population change in recent years . Rural areas once experiencing slow population decline are now 
experiencing rapid population growth, bringing with it unique land use and transportation challenges and 
opportunities. The NDDOT supports local jurisdictions in sound planning to achieve quality jurisdictions, 
as well as safe and efficient state and local transportation systems. The NDDOT has been engaged in a 
variety of planning efforts to address challenges the State and local jurisdictions are facing and advance 
goals they seek to attain. 

Across the state the ND DOT has participated with local partners, in a variety of local planning efforts. 
Following is a sampling of local plans and studies in which the NDDOT has been directly involved or is 
in the process of developing in partnership with the appropriate local jurisdiction(s): 

• Dickinson Transportation Master Plan (completed 2013) 
http ://www.dickinsongov.com/Documents/Infonnation%20Documents/Community%20Develop 
ment/Dickinson%20Transportation%20Plan%20Final.pdf 

• Jamestown Area Land Use and Transportation Plan (in progress) 
http: //rdgusa.com/ crp/j am es town/ 

• Minot Long Range Transportation Plan (in progress) http://transplan2035.minotnd.org/ 
• Minot Transit Study (completed 2013) 
• Watford City Area Future Land Use and Long Range Transportation Plan (in progress) 
• Williston Comprehensive Plan and Highway 2 Corridor Study (in progress) 
• Williston area truck travel pattern study (completed 2014) 
• NDDOT has set aside funding to assist with: 

o Dickinson Transit Fixed Route Study (anticipated to begin in 2015) 
o Ray Comprehensive Plan (anticipated to begin in 2015) 
o Valley City Comprehensive Plan (anticipated to begin in 2015) 

Additionally, the NDDOT is working on an integrated State and local transportation study in the four 
county area of Dunn, McKenzie, Mountrail , and Williams counties. Staff from the NDDOT, Upper Great 
Plains Transportation Institute, as well as staff and county officials from the four county area are working 
cooperatively to identify a safe and efficient integrated transportation network between the local and state 
transportation systems. 

All of these initiatives are highly influenced by existing state and local laws and ordinances regarding 
land-use planning and zoning powers and authorities. 

Local Planning Resources 

The NDDOT is in the process of developing a variety of local planning resources which may offer 
information and technical support to assist jurisdictions. The NDDOT reallocated an existing position to 
add a staff member in western North Dakota to assist local jurisdictions in dealing with local 
transportation and land use issues. The NDDOT field planner is located in the Williston District Office 
and began working with the ND DOT in 2013. His professional focus has been community planning, with 
30 years of experience working as a public- and private-sector planner in Colorado and North Dakota . 

In early 2015 the ND DOT, in partnership with the Federal Highway Administration (FHW A), will be 
conducting a Land Use and Transportation Planning webinar. Staff from the ND DOT, FHW A, and local 
North Dakota jurisdictions will provide information on land use and transportation planning experiences 
and tools which local jurisdictions may consider. 
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In addition to the webinar, the NDDOT is also developing a Local Planning Resource Guide. This 
document is intended to serve as an informational resource to local jurisdictions which may engage in the 
planning process to address issues they are facing or goals they seek to attain. It contains a variety of land 
use and transportation examples, concepts, and tools which local jurisdictions may consider. The 
document, as well as links to other land use and transportation resources which local jurisdictions may 
find useful can be found at the following website: 
https ://www. dot .nd. gov I divisions/planning/land-use-transportation-planning. htm 
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15.0220.02001 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Title. Senator Armstrong A~~\ 

January 21 , 2015 ~ \ 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2032 l-d.d-\S 
Page 1, line 2, replace "oil and gas development strategic planning authority" with "western 

infrastructure strategy office" 

Page 1, line 2, replace "a continuing" with "an" 

Page 1, line 7, replace "Oil and gas development strategic planning authority" with 
"Western infrastructure strategy office" 

Page 1, line 8, replace "oil and gas development strategic planning authority" with "western 
infrastructure strategy office" 

Page 1, line 8, remove "industrial" 

Page 1, line 9, replace "commission. The industrial commission" with "department of 
commerce. The department of commerce" 

Page 1, line 9, remove "hire" 

Page 1, line 10, remove "employees or" 

Page 1, line 12, replace "Oil and gas development strategic planning" with "Duties of the 
western infrastructure strategy office" 

Page 1, line 13, replace "authority" with "director" 

Page 1, line 20, replace "industrial commission" with "department of commerce as well as the 
North Dakota association of oil and gas producing counties" 

Page 2, line 3, replace "industrial commission" with "department of commerce" 

Page 2, line 5, replace "industrial commission" with "department of commerce" 

Page 2, line 8, after "information" insert "and, as requested , coordinate and direct state-funded 
studies relating to western infrastructure and impacts" 

Page 2, remove lines 10 through 26 

Page 2, line 27, replace "17-10-05" with "17-10-04" 

Page 2, line 30, replace "industrial commission" with "department of commerce" 

Page 2, line 31, after the first underscored period insert "The director shall provide annual 
updates to the budget section of the legislative management, the North Dakota 
association of oil and gas producing counties, and the interim energy development and 
transmission committee. 

SECTION 2. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the 
general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $300,000, or 
so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of commerce for the 
purpose of establishing the western infrastructure strategy office pilot project, for the 
biennium beginning July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2017." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15.0220.02001 
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D E PARTMENT OF COMMERCE TESTIMONY ON SENATE BILL 2032 

FEBRUARY 3, 2 0 1 5, 8:30 A.M. 

SENATE APPROPRIATIONS COMMITTEE 

SENATOR RAY HOLMBERG, CHAIRMAN 

ALAN ANDERSON - COMMISSION, ND DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

Good morning, Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, my name is Alan Anderson and I 

serve as the Commissioner for the North Dakota Department of Commerce, as well as chairman 

of thc EmPower North Dakota Commission. 

On behalf of the EmPower ND Commission, I am here today to speak in favor of Senate Bill 
2032 .  This is a bil l  that was recommended by the Commission and approved by the interim 
Energy D evelopment and Transmission committee. A complete list of bills recommended and 
supported by the Commission is below : 

• S enate Bi l l  No. 2032 - Oil  and Gas Development Strategic Planning Authority. 
• S enate Bil l  No. 2033 - Oil & Gas Tax Trigger Mechanism. 
• S enate Bi l l  No. 2034 - Oil  Gathering Pipelines Sales Tax Exemption. 
• Senate Bil l  No. 203 5 - Value-Added Energy Faci lity Sales Tax Exemption. 
• S enate Bil l  No. 2036 - Coal Beneficiation. 
• Senate Bil l  No. 2037 - Wind Energy Incentives & New Coal Mine Sales Tax Exemption. 

As amended by the Senate Energy & Natural Resources Committee, Senate Bill  2032 establishes 
a Western Infrastructure Strategy Office which would be overseen by the Department of 
Commerce. The EmPower ND Commission originally had this as part of the Industrial 
Commission, simil ar to the Pipeline and Transmission Authorities. The Department of 

Commerce did not request this new office, but would do our best to administer it if the 
legislature approves this bill . 

As amended, S B  2032 would be funded with $300,000 from the general fund, which was not 
included in the executive budget recommendation. 

The EmPower ND Commission recommends the creation of this office focused on regional 
infrastructure (roads, airports, emergency and medical services, water and waste water, etc.) that 
wil l  work with communities in coordinating strategic planning efforts. The Commission's focus 
is primaril y  in the hub cities of Dickinson, Minot and Williston, and the core Bakken counties of 

Dunn, M cKenzie, M ountrail and Williams. These efforts should: 
• Provide periodic updates and evaluation on the progress of infrastructure development 

and future needs to the legislature in regards to state and community planning and 
investments. 
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• Work in cooperation with the Energy Impact Coordinator to understand local issues and 
efforts. 

• Assist in data gathering and coordination of infrastructure funding, providing 

recommendations with input from local communities and distributing agencies. 

This office is intended to be a resource for both communities, as well as state policy makers . It 

will act as a coordinator of studies and information to help identify and address needs associated 

with oil and gas development. The strategy office will not itself be making any decisions. 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Appropriations Committee, I respectfully request your 
favorabl e  consideration of Senate Bill 2032 .  That concludes my testimony and I am happy to 

entertain any questions. 
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Senate Appropriations Committee 

February 3, 20 1 5 - 8:30 a.m. - Harvest Room 

North Dakota Department of Transportation 

Steven S. Salwei, P.E. - Office of Transportation Programs Director 

SB 2032 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, my name is Steve Salwei. I serve as the Transportation 
Programs Director for the North Dakota Department of Transportation (DOT). 

I am here today to provide infomlation pertinent to SB 2032 as amended, a bill that would establish a 
western infrastructure strategy office within the Department of Commerce. 

The DOT supports the concept of additional planning for the entire state of North Dakota. Our intent, 
today, is to provide information to you to ensure there is no duplication of efforts, should you decide to 
establish the subject planning authority. Per Century Code 24-0 1 -0 1 ,  the DOT is charged with working 

with local governments to ensure an integrated transportation system is established. The DOT has a long, 
successful history of multi-modal transportation planning throughout North Dakota. Examples of recent 
planning projects include: 

• Statewide long range transportation plan (TransAction III) 
• Update to state roads Highway Performance Classification System (HPCS) 
• State Freight Plan and energy corridor designations 
• Four oil-county study - refining the integrated system with the four largest oil producing counties . 
• Various needs studies in cooperation with the Upper Great Plains Transportation Institute 

o State system 
o Urban system 
o Regional Rail 
o Transit 

• Various city and county transportation and comprehensive plans 
• Statewide Local Road Safety Plans 
• Among many others 

We have a process in place that p1;oritizes projects from a statewide perspective. The DOT works with 
local authorities to program transportation projects into the Statewide Transportation Improvement 
Program (STIP) for bidding and construction. Additionally, the DOT is  coordinating project bidding and 
timing with local government authorities to ensure public disruption is limited to the extent practical. 

In order to provide you with additional information on DOT planning programs we have attached 
documents describing some of the transportation planning efforts the ND DOT has underway or has 
recently completed. 

Thank You. I would be happy to answer any questions. 
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NDDOT Statewide Planning Initiatives 

The NDDOT has utilized performance management to ass ist in the management of the State' s 
transportation assets since the early 2000s with the adoption of the Highway Performance Classification 
System (HPCS). The HPCS is comprised of a five level classification system with varying performance 
expectations from each classification. The levels include: Interstate; Interregional ; State Corridors; 
District Corridors; and District Collectors (see Figure I). Generally, the HPCS is utilized in consideration 
of the physical design of roadways, establishing maintenance priorities, establishing expected or desired 
functional service characteristics, and informing investment decisions. Recently, the NDDOT has been 
working to enhance the existing performance management concept. To this end the Department is 
working to develop an enhanced set of measures to evaluate the performance of the State' s rural 
transportation system in areas such as: pavement and bridge condition; safety; freight and traveler 
operational conditions; and operational reliability. 

State Highway Performance Classification System 
2012 
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Figure 1. HPCS Map 
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Recently, the ND DOT embarked on the development of the North Dakota State Freight Plan that 
attempts to meet North Dakota' s unique freight challenges, as well as the goals of the State' s freight 
transportation stakeholders . By reaching out to a variety of stakeholders, the general public and 
surrounding states and provinces, the draft plan identifies freight-system trends, issues, and concerns and 
suggests policy-based strategies for improving the state ' s freight transportation system. The draft plan 
may be viewed at the following website: http://www.dot.nd.gov/divisions/planning/freight/ 
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The NDDOT and Upper Great Plains Transportation Institute (UGPTI) are finalizing a variety of studies 
to identify the resources necessary to adequately address existing and projected demand on the states 
multimodal transportation system. A statewide needs analysis assesses the State 's  roadway network, as 
well as roadway infrastructure needs for North Dakota's  urban areas. A short-line rail needs study 
evaluates the 1 ,085 miles of in-service rail line operated by the State' s  three largest short-line railroads 
including: Red River Valley and Western; Dakota Missouri Valley and Western; and Northern Plains 
Railroad. Additionally, a statewide transit study assesses the existing and proj ected capital needs of the 
rural and urban transit providers. 

The State' s  long range transportation plan (TransAction III) provides guidance and direction for the 
development of North Dakota' s  transportation system. Development of the plan relies heavi ly on 
transportation-stakeholder and public involvement to establ ish the State's  values related to transportation. 
The plan seeks to develop goals and objectives to address existing and projected transportation issues and 
needs related to North Dakota. This plan is typically updated on a five-to-seven (5-7) year cycle, with the 
last update published in late 20 1 2. 

The State' s  Strategic Highway Safety Plan (SHSP) provides guidance for a multi-disciplinary approach to 
highway safety, with the ultimate goal of eliminating fatal and serious-injury crashes on all public roads 
in the state of North Dakota. The current SHSP was published in September 20 1 3 , after an extensive 
outreach effort involving state, federal, local, and tribal governmental entities, private sector foundations 
and associations, law enforcement, emergency-services personnel, transportation engineers, and the 
public, among others. The resulting document was branded with the tag-line "Code for the Road" and 
identified six (6) emphasis areas resulting from an analysis of the leading contributing factors to fatal and 
serious injury crashes in the state. The SHSP also documents recommended proven-effective strategies to 
mitigate those factors. The six emphasis areas are (in descending order of 2007-' 1 1  crash correlation): 
Lane departure; Unbelted vehicle occupants; Alcohol; Speeding/ Aggressive driving; Younger drivers 
(under 2 1  ); and Intersections. Additionally, the SHSP process identified that about half of fatal and 
serious injury crashes were occurring off the state system and on the local road system. As a result, the 
NDDOT initiated the Local Road Safety Program which deploys a systemic safety analysis using 
geometric and traffic characteristics as surrogates for risk. Local road safety plans identifying road 
segments and proven-effective safety solutions are being developed for all 53 counties, as well as the 1 2  
urbanized areas (cities with a population of 5000 or more), four tribes, and a national park. The plans are 
being used by local and state personnel to assist with project-level safety-investment decisions. 

North Dakota' s current rail plan was developed in 2007. The environment i 1 1flm:m:ing rail transportation, 
since the current plan was developed, has changed significantly in recent years. Therefore, this plan is due 
to be updated. 

NDDOT employs a sophisticated process of project selection to develop the Statewide Transportation 
Improvement Program (STIP). The Programming Division develops the STIP using a variety of tools and 
input (both internal and public); these inputs include: District project nominations, pavement 
management information, bridge management information, traffic volume data, Highway Performance 
Classification System guidelines, maintenance information, public and governmental entity comments, 
geographic workload distribution, distribution of work types to support and align with industry resources, 
and the available funding, among others . 

Many of these processes and plans are highly influenced by federal regulations tied to various funding 
eligibility. 
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Local Planning Initiatives 

As the Committee is aware, many of North Dakota 's local jurisdictions have experienced dramatic 
population change in recent years. Rural areas once experiencing slow population decline are now 
experiencing rapid population growth, bringing with it unique land use and transportation challenges and 
opportunities. The ND DOT supports local jurisdictions in sound planning to achieve quality jurisdictions, 
as well as safe and efficient state and local transportation systems. The NDDOT has been engaged in a 
variety of planning efforts to address challenges the State and local jurisdictions are facing and advance 
goals they seek to attain. 

Across the state the NDDOT has participated with local partners, in a variety of local planning efforts. 
Following is a sampling of local plans and studies in which the NDDOT has been directly involved or is 
in the process of developing in partnership with the appropriate local jurisdiction(s): 

• Dickinson Transportation Master Plan (completed 2013) 
http://www.dickinsongov.com/Documents/Information%20Documents/Community%20Develop 
ment/Dickinson%20Transportation%20Plan%20Final.pdf 

• Jamestown Area Land Use and Transportation Plan (in progress) 
http://rdgusa.com/crp/jamestown/ 

• Minot Long Range Transportation Plan (in progress) http://transplan2035.rninotnd.org/ 
• Minot Transit Study (completed 2013) 
• Watford City Area Future Land Use and Long Range Transportation Plan (in progress) 
• Williston Comprehensive Plan and Highway 2 Corridor Study (in progress) 
• Williston area truck travel pattern study (completed 2014) 
• ND DOT has set aside funding to assist with: 

o Dickinson Transit Fixed Route Study (anticipated to begin in 2015) 
o Ray Comprehensive Plan (anticipated to begin in 2015) 
o Valley City Comprehensive Plan (anticipated to begin in 2015) 

Additionally, the NDDOT is working on an integrated State and local transportation study in the four 
county area of Dunn, McKenzie, Mountrail, and Williams counties. Staff from the ND DOT, Upper Great 
Plains Transportation Institute, as well as staff and county officials from the four county area are working 
cooperatively to identify a safe and efficient integrated transportation network between the local and state 
transportation systems. 

All of these initiatives are highly influenced by existing state and local laws and ordinances regarding 
land-use planning and zoning powers and authorities. 

Local Planning Resources 

The NDDOT is in the process of developing a variety of local planning resources which may offer 
information and technical support to assist jurisdictions. The NDDOT reallocated an existing position to 
add a staff member in western North Dakota to assist local jurisdictions in dealing with local 
transportation and land use issues. The NDDOT field planner is located in the Williston District Office 
and began working with the NDDOT in 2013. His professional focus has been community planning, with 
30 years of experience working as a public- and private-sector planner in Colorado and North Dakota. 

In early 2015 the ND DOT, in partnership with the Federal Highway Administration (FHW A), will be 
conducting a Land Use and Transportation Planning webinar. Staff from the NDDOT, FHWA, and local 
North Dakota jurisdictions will provide information on land use and transportation planning experiences 
and tools which local jurisdictions may consider. 
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In addition to the webinar, the NDDOT is also developing a Local Planning Resource Guide. This 
document is intended to serve as an informational resource to local jurisdictions which may engage in the 
planning process to address issues they are facing or goals they seek to attain. It contains a variety of land 
use and transportation examples, concepts, and tools which local jurisdictions may consider. The 
document, as well as links to other land use and transportation resources which local jurisdictions may 
find useful can be found at the following website: 
https ://www. dot.nd. gov I di visions/p lanning/land-use-transportati on-p lanning.htm 

d __, 5 




